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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”)
OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than
other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors
should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies
and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM
mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other

sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk
that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market
volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in

the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of

the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of China Binary Sale Technology Limited (the
“Company” and the “Directors”, respectively) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM (the “GEM Listing
Rules”) of the Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving information with
regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief, the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and
not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of

which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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Corporate Information (Continued)
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Corporate Information (Continued)
AEER(E)

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN THE CAYMAN
ISLANDS

Offshore Incorporations (Cayman) Limited
Floor 4, Willow House

Cricker Square

P.O. Box 2804

Grand Cayman KY1-1112

Cayman Islands

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN HONG KONG

Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
31/F, 148 Electric Road

North Point

Hong Kong

COMPLIANCE ADVISER

Quam Capital Limited
18/F, China Building

29 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

LISTING INFORMATION

Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 8255
Board Lot: 6000

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

www.shenzhoufu.hk

FREHERODBFERAR

Offshore Incorporations (Cayman) Limited
Floor 4, Willow House

Cricker Square

P.O. Box 2804

Grand Cayman KY1-1112

Cayman Islands

EERODBEELIRE

EEREBELFELERAA
BB

it A&

TR IE 148573112

&R
EERALEREARAF
BB

ERKREFR 295

= A7T1812

FtmER
BERBARZHTAER DT R ER
f& 1 5% - 8255
B & BE AL : 6000

NCIEER

www.shenzhoufu.hk



Financial Summary

BBHBE

2014 2013 2012 2011
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTRT AR®TT ARETT

Results (for the year ended ~ ¥4 (B E12 831 H L FE)
31 December)

— Revenue — A 63,094 61,228 53,252 46,063
— Gross profit —E F 42,712 41,971 33,791 27,620
— Listing expenses — WX - (8,310) (4,492) —
— Profit before income tax — & BT 15 B4 A 2 B o 27,400 21,065 17,877 18,722
expenses
— Profit and total —FNE M &2 E W=
comprehensive FEk:)
income for the year 20,611 14,886 13,412 14,692
Earnings per share BEREBF(ARES)
(RMB cents)
— Basic —EK 4.32 4.08 3.73 N/A
TEMA
Financial Position MR (12431 R)
(as at 31 December)
— Non-current assets —IEREBEE 4,643 1,875 2117 2,277
— Current assets —REEE 153,720 121,431 129,104 115,376
— Current liabilities —REBEE 52,021 41,008 60,243 61,782
— Non-current liabilities —JERBAEE 4,366 2,403 6,402 4,707

— Total equity — R 101,976 79,895 64,576 51,164




Chairman’s Statement
TEHRE

On behalf of the board of the Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to present
the annual results of China Binary Sale Technology Limited (together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2014 (the “Year”).

In 2014, there was no significant change in the results of the Group, and it
accomplished operating revenue of approximately RMB63,094,000,
representing a growth of RMB1,866,000 or approximately 3.0% as compared
to RMB61,228,000 in 2013. Gross profit amounted to approximately
RMB42,712,000, representing a growth of RMB741,000 or approximately 1.8%
as compared to RMB41,971,000 in 2013.

In 2014, the Group accomplished profit before income tax expense of
approximately RMB27,400,000, representing a growth of RMB6,335,000 or
approximately 30.1% as compared to RMB21,065,000 in 2013.

In 2014, the Group achieved profit and total comprehensive income of
approximately RMB20,611,000, representing an increase of RMB5,725,000
or 38.5% as compared to RMB14,886,000 in 2013. The increase was mainly
due to the cost incurred for listing of the Group, which amounted to
approximately RMB8,310,000 in 2013.

In 2014, the Group invested in two companies related to the bitcoin, one
engaged in bitcoin information and communication, and the other engaged in
bitcoin trading.

In 2014, the Group also launched the two-dimensional barcode top-up
service and the service permitting overseas game users to pay for the online
game products with bitcoins, credit card and debit card online, which further
expanded the Group’s product line.
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Chairman's Statement (Continued)

In 2015, the Group will continue to actively expand game operators and
expand mobile top-up channels to enhance the volume of business; on the
other hand, the Group will also actively explore new marketing opportunities
and innovative services while strictly keep the risks under control, and thus be
able to access to more market resources and further improve its profitability,
which in turn will bring more return for its shareholders.

On behalf of the Board and management, | would like to express gratitude to
the Group’s staffs for their hard work during the Year. | would also like to
extend my thanks to all shareholders, directors and business partners who
have supported the Group.

Chairman
Wei Zhonghua

13 March 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED N

The Group is principally engaged in providing online transaction services by
facilitating transactions between online game operators and online game
users and providing mobile top-up service to mobile subscribers. The Group
offers online transaction platform which could enable online game users to
pay their online game accounts through mobile top-up credits by operating
its self-developed Shenzhoufu System and cooperating with online game
operators in the PRC. The Group uses the mobile top-up credits received
from online game users to top up mobile subscription accounts. Such
process can also be realized by use of Shen Zhou Fu Card issued by the
Group on the internet. Besides, the Group is also engaged in distribution of
online game products and the operation of the Game Review Website.

Revenue

For the Year, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately RMB63.094
million, representing an increase of RMB1.866 million or 3.0% as compared
to RMB61.228 million of last year. The principal change in revenue during the
year was as follows:

During the Year, the number of online game operators cooperated with
the Group increased from 631 at the beginning of the year to 793.
There are approximately 32,567,000 transactions providing online
transaction services to the online game operators through the
Shenzhoufu system, increased 3,269,000 cases or 11.2% as
compared to 29,298,000 cases for the year of 2013. Transaction
amount for the year was approximately RMB1,928 million, representing
an increase of RMB191 million or 11.0% as compared to the
transaction amount of RMB1,737 million last year. However, with the
increase of transactions, the average discount derived from game
operators in 2014 dropped to 3.54% from 3.95% in 2013, representing
a decrease of 10.4%, which offset the revenue from the increase of
transaction amount to a certain extent.

For the Year, there are approximately 41,953,000 transactions of
mobile top-up services provided by the Group, increased 11,080,000
cases or 35.9% as compared to 30,873,000 cases for the year of
2013. Transaction amount was approximately RMB3,321 million,
representing an increase of RMB773 million or 30.3% as compared to
that of RMB2,548 million of last year. The increase in transaction
volume was mainly due to the significant and continuous increase in
transaction volume of the online top-up services from bank-operated
e-commerce platforms, which increased to RMB2,270 million in 2014
from RMB1,237 million in 2013 and the proportion of total transaction
value of online transaction services sourced from this channel increased
t0 68.4% in 2014 from 48.5% in 2013.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Transactions of mobile top-up services increased significantly, which
required the Group to purchase more phone cards directly to meet the
demand. In 2014, the nominal value of the phone cards purchased by
the Group was approximately RMB1,345 million, accounting for 40.3%
of the transaction amount of mobile top-up services for the whole year,
while in 2013, the nominal value of the phone cards purchased by the
Group was only approximately RMB761 million, accounting for 29.6%
of the transaction amount of mobile top-up services for the whole year.
However, due to the high purchasing cost of phone cards, the gross
profit margin of mobile top-up service decreased; as a result, the overall
revenue received by the Group from the provision of online transaction
services was approximately RMB59.383 million for the whole year,
representing an increase of RMB4.402 million or 8.0% as compared to
RMB54.981 million in 2013.

The transaction amount from distributing online game products of the
Group in 2014 was approximately RMB144.537 million, representing
an increase of RMB24.358 million or 20.3% as compared to that of
RMB120.179 million in 2013. However, due to the increase of purchase
cost of game cards, revenue from distribution of game products
business in 2014 was approximately RMB3.639 million, representing a
decrease of RMBO0.585 million or 13.8% as compared to that of
RMB4.224 million in 2013.

In 2014, mobile games in game market of China increased significantly,
which brought both opportunities and challenges. Under such
environment, we did not make great investment in Game Review
Website as scheduled in 2014, but hold a conservative attitude.
Therefore, in 2014, the Game Review Website only generated a
revenue of approximately RMBO0.072 million, representing a significant
decrease as compared to that of RMB2.023 million in 2013.

Cost of Revenue

In 2014, the cost of revenue of the Group increased approximately RMB1.125
million or 5.8% to RMB20.382 million from RMB19.257 million in 2013. The
increase in cost of revenue was due to the proportion of bank-operated
e-commerce platforms for top-up services in the overall top-up services
increased to 68.4% of 2014 from 48.5% of 2013, and the charge rate of
bank-operated e-commerce platforms is higher than that of other channels,
thus the bank handling fee paid in the year increased 21.5% from
approximately RMB8.271 million of 2013 to RMB10.051 million of 2014.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENWED N (E)

Gross Profit

During the Year, the gross profit of the Group was RMB42.712 million,
representing an increase of RMBO0.741 million or 1.8% as compared to
RMB41.971 million in 2013, and the gross profit margin in 2014 slightly
decreased to 67.7% from 68.5% in 2013.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The selling and distribution expenses of the Group increased from RMB3.086
million in 2013 to RMB3.579 miillion in 2014, representing an increase of
approximately RMBO0.493 million or 16.0%. The increase was mainly due to
the fact that the Company significantly increased the remunerations of some
sales personnel in order to motivate them in 2014.

Administrative Expenses

In 2014, the administrative expenses of the Group was approximately
RMB13.022 million, representing an increase of approximately RMB3.239
million or 33.1% as compared to RMB9.783 million in 2013. Reasons for the
significant increase of administrative expenses mainly include: (a) labor cost
increased RMB1.143 million, which was mainly due to the fact that the
Company significantly increased the remuneration of some middle to senior
staffs in order to motivate and strengthen the stability of staffs after its listing; (b)
the Company was required to pay compliance advisers’ fee, audit fee, printing
expense and other fees for professional institutions, which also resulted in the
increase of administrative expenses.

Income Tax Expenses

During the Year, the income tax expenses of the Group was approximately
RMB6.789 million (2013: RMB6.179 million) with the effective tax rate of
24.8% (2013: 29.3%), the decline of the effective tax rate was mainly due to
the Group incurred approximately RMB8.310 million listing expenses, a non-
tax deductible expenses incurred by an oversea company in 2013.

Profit and Total Comprehensive Income for the Year

During the Year, the profit and total comprehensive income of the Group was
approximately RMB20.611 million, representing an increase of RMB5.725
million or 38.5% as compared to RMB14.886 million in 2013.

The increase of profit and total comprehensive income of the Group for the
year of 2014 was mainly due to the listing cost of approximately RMB8.310
million of the Group incurred during the year of 2013.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2014, bank and cash balances of the Group was
approximately RMB64.820 million (31 December 2013: RMB68.826 million),
which was mainly denominated in RMB, USD and HKD.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any loans or shareholders’
loans (31 December 2013: nil).

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had total non-current assets of
approximately RMB4.643 million (31 December 2013: RMB1.875 million). The
significant increase in non-current assets was mainly due to the fact that the
Company invested in two bitcoin-related enterprises during the year. The total
current assets was approximately RMB153.720 million (31 December 2013:
RMB121.431 million). The significant increase of current assets was due to
the increase of inventory balance and prepayment balance of game operators
as a result of the increase of the transaction amount during the year of 2014.
The total amount of current liabilities was approximately RMB52.021 million (31
December 2013: RMB41.008 million). The increase of current liabilities was
mainly due to the increase of transaction amount of online transaction
services provided to game operators and the corresponding increase of their
payables unsettled during the year. As at 31 December 2014, amount due
from related companies was approximately RMB3.973 million (31 December
2013: RMB6.087 million). As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s current ratio
was 2.95 (31 December 2013: 2.96).

Foreign Exchange Risk

The principal business operated by the Group was denominated in RMB,
while part of assets and liabilities may be denominated in USD or HKD. Any
material fluctuation of exchange rate from the USD and HKD against RMB will
result in influence on the financial results of the Group. During the year of
2014, the Group had a foreign exchange gain of approximately RMB1,000
(2013: loss of RMB860,000) resulted from the change of the exchange rate.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had 95 employees (31 December 2013:
86). For the Year, the staff costs, including Directors’ remuneration of the
Group, amounted to approximately RMB7.099 million (2013: RMB4.931
million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENWED N (E)

The Group believes that employees are one of the most important assets of
the Group. In order to offer a competitive remuneration to employees, the
Group adjusted their remuneration to closely relevant to their performance,
education background and experience, as well as the condition of the labour
market in 2014. As a result, staff costs increased significantly during the year
and reached 44.0%. The full-time employees could be granted Share Option
to subscribe Shares under the share option scheme adopted on 9 November
2013. The Group is positively providing training opportunities for employees
to strengthen their working skills.

Contingent Liabilities and Guarantees

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities, guarantees or any litigation against the Group.

Significant Investment and Capital Commitment

As at 31 December 2014, the Group neither engaged in material investment
nor had any material capital commitments and no future plans for material
investments or acquisition of capital assets.

Comparison between Business Plan and Actual
Business Progress

The Company was successfully listed on the GEM on 4 December 2013. The
net proceeds from placing were approximately HK$48.301 million. As at 31
December 2014, the comparison between the business plan that was
disclosed in the prospectus dated 27 November 2013 (the “Prospectus”) and
the actual business development during the year was as follows:

Execution in 2014

2014 FE B THER

Business Objectives
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Maintain and enhance its leading position as
an online transaction services provider in the
Chinese online game market;

During the year of 2014, the number of online game operators cooperated with the
Group increased from 631 at the beginning of the year to 793. The transaction
amount derived from providing online transaction services to the online game

operators through the Shenzhoufu system was approximately RMB1,737 million for
the whole year, increased by RMB191 million or 11.0% as compared to that of
2013. This sector maintains a stable growth, which further reinforced the leadership
status of the Group in the market.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Business Objectives

XBER

EEENWED N (E)

Execution in 2014

2014 HATIER

Expand its online transaction services to
overseas users;

BAREMBIIAFRERENE LR ZRE

Become the leading integrated online game
information and transaction service provider
by successfully developing the Game Review
Website into a professional and comprehensive
online game information platform and
promoting online games through the Game
Review Website.

EBKNERERBTIPA—EAZELE
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HERLER KRARENESE LB
BARXZREHER -

Use of Proceeds

As of 31 December 2014, the Group had not utilized any raised funds from
listing. Proceeds from placing were currently deposited in the bank account

of Shenzhoufu Software as short-term deposits.

During the year of 2014, in addition to providing services to overseas mobile
subscribers and online game users via www.shenzhoufu.hk, the website operated
by Shen Zhou Xing, a Hong Kong subsidiary, the Group also cooperated with
Payyard and Paypal Pte, through which, overseas game users were able to pay for
online game products with Bitcoins, credit card and debit card online via internet
payment platform operated by Payyard and Paypal Pte overseas, and by which,
our online services expanded to overseas market.
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www.shenzhoufu.hk &/ SN F# A F MB L A FIRERB N AEEE
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In 2014, the mobile games in China’s game market increased significantly, which
brought about many new opportunities and new changes. Under such adjustment,
we did not make great investment in Youxiping as scheduled, but hold a

conservative attitude to maintain its development. During the year of 2014, the
Group invested a total amount of RMB1.041 million in Youxiping business, of
which, expenses on research and development was approximately RMB638,000,
expenses on marketing was RMB40,000. As of the end of 2014, there were 14
staffs of the Group engaged in Youxiping business. All the funds injected in the
Youxiping business were internal capital of the Group, and no proceeds were
utilized.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles
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Mr. Sun Jiangtao, aged 37, is the Chief Executive Officer and an Executive
Director of the Company, and was appointed as Executive Director on 11
May 2011. He is also a member of the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee. Mr. Sun joined the Group in October 2004. Mr. Sun
is responsible for the overall management and business development of the
Group. Mr. Sun graduated from Beijing University of Aeronautics and
Astronautics with a bachelor’s degree in Engineering. In 2012, Mr. Sun was
acknowledged as “2012 Outstanding Young Entrepreneur in the Industry of
China’s Electronic Information” by China Electronics Enterprises Association.
In 2014, Mr. Sun was recognized as 2014 China’s Commercial Influential
People (PRI E 2 1 AY)) by the Third Session of China Finance Summit
Organizing Committee (R B8 481 & 48 Z &) and he has more than 14 years
of experience in corporate management, financing, operation, product design
and marketing.

Mr. Sun also serves as the Director of Shenzhoufu (Beijing) Software
Technology Co., Ltd., the subsidiary of the Group, Beijing Shenzhoufu
Technology Co., Ltd. and Beijing Tianjiyilian Technology Co., Ltd.

Mr. Tang Bin, aged 34, is an Executive Director. Mr. Tang was appointed as
an Executive Director on 8 June 2012. He is also the Compliance Officer of
the Company. Mr. Tang is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
management of sales and marketing department and maintenance of the
daily operation. Mr. Tang has over ten years of accumulated experience in the
[T industry and online game business and is familiar with the operation flow of
the Group. Mr. Tang graduated from Beijing University of Aeronautics and
Astronautics.

Mr. Tang also serves as the Executive Director of the Beijing Shenzhoufu
Network Technology Development Limited, the subsidiary of the Group.

Mr. Wei Zhonghua, aged 37, is the Chairman of the Board and a Non-
executive Director. He joined the Group in October 2004 and was appointed
as a Non-executive Director on 11 May 2011. He is also a member of the
Audit Committee. Mr. Wei is responsible for supervising administrative
activities of the Group and giving suggestions to the formation of strategies.
Mr. Wei graduated from the University of Science and Technology Beijing with
a bachelor’s degree in Engineering. Mr. Wei has over 10 years of experience
in the IT industry.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles (Continued)
EEREREEAERN (E)

Mr. Zhang Zhen, aged 38, is a Non-executive Director. He joined the Group
in September 2008 and was appointed as a Non-executive Director on 11
May 2011. Mr. Zhang is responsible for supervising administrative activities of
the Group and giving suggestions to the formation of strategies. Mr. Zhang
graduated from Tsinghua University with a bachelor’s degree in Engineering,
a bachelor’s degree in Law and a master’s degree in Management, and had
obtained PRC lawyer’s qualification certificate. Mr. Zhang has over 10 years
of experience in venture capital and has experience in IT company
management.

Ms. Guo Jia, aged 37, is a Non-executive Director. She joined the Group in
August 2009 and was appointed as a Non-executive Director on 11 May
2011. Ms. Guo is responsible for supervising administrative activities of the
Group and giving suggestions to the formation of strategies. Ms. Guo
graduated from Central University of Finance and Economics with a
bachelor’s degree in Economics. Ms. Guo has over 10 years of experience in
entrepreneurial financing and investment. Ms. Guo has been a senior partner
of Ventech China Limited Beijing Representative Office since 2007.

Mr. Yang Guang, aged 41, is an Independent Non-executive Director, the
chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee. He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive Director on
9 November 2013. Mr. Yang has over 15 years of experience in investment
banking and finance. Since March 2012, Mr. Yang has been a Managing
Director of China Merchants Kunlun Investment Management Co., Ltd.

Mr. Yang graduated from Nankai University with a bachelor’s degree in
Economic Law, and obtained a master’s degree in Business Administration
from Ohio State University in March 2004. Mr. Yang has been a Chartered
Financial Analyst since September 2008. He has also been admitted as a
qualified PRC lawyer since May 1999.

Mr. Hou Dong, aged 43, is an Independent Non-executive Director, the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee. He was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 9 November 2013. Mr. Hou has
approximately 9 years of experience in management and capital investment.
Mr. Hou currently is venture partner of Tuspark Venture Capital Management
(Beijing) Co., Ltd.

Mr. Hou obtained a master’s degree in Engineering and a master’s degree in
Economics.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles (Continued)

BEENSREBAEREN (E)

Mr. He Qinghua, aged 37, is an Independent Non-executive Director and the
chairman of the Audit Committee. He was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director on 9 November 2013. Mr. He worked for several famous
international accounting firms with over 14 years of experience in accounting,
internal control and risk management.

Mr. He graduated from University of International Business and Economics
with a bachelor’s degree in International Corporate Management in July 2000.
He is a Certified Public Accountant accredited by the Ministry of Finance of
the PRC.

Ms. Tang Yanhua, aged 37, is the Chief Financial Officer of the Group. Ms.
Tang graduated from Sun Yat-Sen University with a bachelor’s degree in
Economics. She worked for several famous international accounting firms for
years, accumulated over 14 years of experience in accounting, financial
management, financing, audit, internal control and risk management. Ms.
Tang joined the Group in 2010, responsible for the accounting, finance and
administration matters of the Group.

Ms. Tang is a Certified Internal Auditor accredited by the China Institute of
Internal Auditors with the authorisation from the Institute of Internal Auditors.
She is also a Certified Public Accountant accredited by the Ministry of Finance
of the PRC.

Mr. Wu Yuhang, aged 32, is the Vice President of the Group. Mr. Wu
graduated from Beijing University of Technology with a bachelor’s degree in
Economics. He joined the Group in 2005, in charge of the sales and
marketing department of the Group and is responsible for establishing and
maintaining cooperation relationship with business partners of the Group in
the PRC online game industry.

Mr. Zhang Hongyi, aged 37, is the Chief Technology Officer of the Group.
Mr. Zhang joined the Group in 2006. He is responsible for the development
and maintenance of the Group’s technology management system as well as
work relating to the establishment of the Group’s technology standard and
work flow. Mr. Zhang graduated from Beijing University of Aeronautics and
Astronautics with a bachelor’s degree in Engineering.

Mr. Tang Bin, aged 34, is the Compliance Officer of the Group. For details of
his qualifications and experience, please refer to "Directors and Senior
Management Profiles — Executive Directors”.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles (Continued)

BEENSREBAEEBN

Mr. Kwok Siu Man, aged 56, was appointed as the Company Secretary with
effect from 9 November 2013. Mr. Kwok has over 25 years’ in-house legal,
corporate secretarial and management experience gained at company
secretary and other senior positions from reputable listed companies in Hong
Kong (including Hang Seng Index Constituent and Hang Seng Mid- Cap 50
Index stock companies) and overseas.

Mr. Kwok matriculated from Queen’s College, holds a professional diploma in
company secretaryship and administration, a bachelor’s degree of arts and a
post-graduate diploma in laws and has passed the Common Professional
Examination in England and Wales.

Mr. Kwok is a fellow of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrator in England, the Institute of Financial Accountants in England,
The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries (the “HKICS”), The Hong
Kong Association of Accountants and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors
and a member of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute. He
possesses other professional qualifications in arbitration, tax, financial
planning and human resource management. He was a chief examiner and the
longest-serving council member of the HKICS.

Mr. Kwok currently also serves as the company secretary and joint company
secretary of a number of companies listed on the Main Board and the GEM of
the Stock Exchange, respectively. He was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Kwok is the Head of Corporate Secretarial in Boardroom Corporate
Services (HK) Limited and a director of Boardroom Share Registrars (HK)
Limited. He is not an employee of the Company and he can contact Ms. Tang
Yanhua, the chief financial officer of the Company, in relation of to any
corporate secretarial matter.
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Report of the Directors
EEEHS

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) have pleasure in presenting
their annual report with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2014 (the “Year”).

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability on 11 May 2011. Pursuant to a reorganisation to
rationalise the group structure in preparation for the listing of the issued
ordinary shares of US$0.001 each in the capital of the Company (the “Shares”)
on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”, the “GEM”, respectively), the Company
became the holding company of the Group. Details of the reorganisation are
set out in the “Reorganisation” paragraph in the section headed “History and
Development” of the Company’s prospectus dated 27 November 2013 (the
“Prospectus”).

Following the placing of 120,000,000 Shares at a price of HK$0.60 per Share
(the “Placing”), the Company was initially listed on the GEM on 4 December
2018 (the “Listing Date”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
There was no significant change in its activities during the Year.

The chief operating decision-maker of the Group has been identified as the
executive directors of the Company. The executive directors regularly review
revenue and operating results derived from provision of online transaction
services, profit sharing with online game operators and provision of online
advertising services and consider such as one single operating segment.

No geographical information is presented as all the Group’s operations are
located in the People’s Republic of China.

Information about major clients

There is no single customer which contributed to 10% or more revenue to the
Group’s revenue for the Year.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

The results of the Group for the Year and the state of affairs of the Group and
the Company at 31 December 2014 are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 46 to 104.

The board of Directors (the “Board”) does not recommend the payment of
any dividend in respect of the Year.

The net proceeds received by the Company from the Placing, after deducting
the underwriting fees and other relevant fees and expenses, amounted to
approximately HK$48,301 million. For further details of the use of proceeds,
please refer to the “Comparison between Business Plan and Actual Business
Progress” paragraph under the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on page 12 of this annual report.

A summary of the results as well as the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last four financial years is set out on page 5 of this annual report.

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
for the Year are set out in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group had no interest capitalization for the Year.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had no bank borrowings.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEEHS (HA)

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the Year are
set out in Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in the
equity and in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

As at 31 December 2014, the Company’s distributable reserve was
approximately RMB35.863 million under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands.

For the Year, the aggregate mobile top-up transaction amount from the five
largest mobile top-up agents accounted for approximately 12.3% (2013:
18.8%) of the Group’s total mobile top-up amount, and mobile top-up
transaction amount from the largest mobile top-up agent of the Group
accounted for approximately 5.4% (2013: 6.8%) of the Group’s total mobile
top-up transaction amount.

For the Year, the aggregate transaction amount from the five largest online
game operators accounted for approximately 36.9% (2013: 34.8%) of the
Group’s total amount of online transaction service, and mobile top-up amount
from the largest online game operator of the Group accounted for
approximately 13.1% (2013: 13.9%) of the Group’s total amount of online
transaction service.

For the Year, the aggregate purchasing amount from the five largest mobile
top-up service distributors accounted for approximately 78.0% (2013: 85.4%)
of the Group’s total mobile top-up purchasing amount, and the purchasing
amount from the largest mobile top-up service distributor of the Group
accounted for approximately 22.6% (2013: 29.3%) of the Group’s total
mobile top-up purchasing amount.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

None of the Directors, their close associates, or any shareholders (which, to
the knowledge of the Directors, owned more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had a beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers.

The Company did not redeem any of its listed securities nor did the Company
or any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell such securities during the Year.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had issued or granted any
convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights or exercised any
rights in relation to convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights
during the Year.

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles of association of
the Company (the “Articles of Association”), or laws of the Cayman Islands,
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who have contributed or may contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. The Share Option Scheme was adopted by the Company on 9
November 2013, the principal terms of which are set out below:

The Board may at its discretion grant right(s) to subscribe for the Share(s)
pursuant to the terms of the Share Option Scheme (“Option”) to any of the
following persons (the “Eligible Participants”):

(@ any Director, employee or officer of any company in the Group who is
employed by any company in the Group (whether full time or part time)
(the “Employee”), consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent,
partner or adviser of or contractor to the Group or a company in which
the Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company (the
“Affiliate”); or
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the trustee of any trust, the beneficiary of which or any discretionary
trust, the discretionary objects of which include any Director, Employee,
consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner or adviser
of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate; or

a company beneficially owned by any Director, Employee, consultant,
professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner, adviser of or contractor
to the Group or an Affiliate.

Maximum Number of Shares

@)

Subject to paragraphs (b) to (d) below, the maximum number of Shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all Options granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other schemes must not, in aggregate,
exceed 48,000,000 Shares, being 10% of the Shares in issue as at the
Listing Date (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) unless approved by the
shareholders of the Company pursuant to paragraph (c) below. Options
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme wiill
not be counted for the purpose of calculating the Scheme Mandate
Limit.

Subject to paragraphs (c) and (d) below, the Scheme Mandate Limit
may be renewed by the shareholders in general meeting from time to
time provided always that the Scheme Mandate Limit so renewed must
not exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of approval of
such renewal by shareholders in general meeting. Upon such renewal,
all Options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company (including those exercised,
outstanding, cancelled and lapsed in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme or any other share option schemes of the
Company) prior to the approval of such renewal shall not be counted
for the purpose of calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit as renewed.

Subject to paragraph (d) below, the Board may seek separate
shareholders’ approval in general meeting to grant Options beyond the
Scheme Mandate Limit provided that the Options in excess of the
Scheme Mandate Limit are granted only to the Eligible Participants
specifically identified by the Company before such approval is sought.
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The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding Options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
involving the issue or grant of Options or similar rights over Shares or
other securities by the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 30%
of the Shares in issue from time to time. Notwithstanding anything
contrary to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, no Options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme or any other share option
schemes of the Company if this will result in the said 30% limit being
exceeded.

Maximum Entitlement of Each Eligible Participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
Options granted to each Eligible Participant (including both exercised and
outstanding Options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the

Shares of the Company in issue. Any grant of further Options above this limit

shall be subject to the following requirements:

@)

approval of the shareholders of the Company at general meeting, with
such Eligible Participant and its associates abstaining from voting;

a circular in relation to the proposal for such further grant having been
sent by the Company to its shareholders with such information from
time to time as required by the Rules governing the Listing on the GEM (the
“GEM Listing Rules”);

the number and terms of the Options to be granted to such proposed
grantee shall be fixed before the shareholders’ approval mentioned in
paragraph (a) above; and

for the purpose of calculating the minimum exercise price for the
Shares in respect of the further Options proposed to be so granted, the
date of Board meeting for proposing such grant of further Options shall
be taken as the date of offer of such Options.

Time of Exercise of Option

An Option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may determine

which shall not exceed 10 years from the date the Option is deemed to have

been granted subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.
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Basis of Determining the Exercise Price

The exercise price for any Share under the Share Option Scheme shall be a
price determined by the Board and notified to the relevant Eligible Participants
and shall not be less than the highest of:

(@  the closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant of the relevant Option, which
must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business
of dealing in securities (the “Business Day”);

(b)  an amount equivalent to the average closing price of a Share as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 Business
Days immediately preceding the date of grant of the relevant Option;
and

(c)  the nominal value of a Share on the date of grant.

Period of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years
commencing on the Listing Date.

No share options were granted or cancelled by the Company or lapsed or
were exercised under the Share Option Scheme during the Year and there
were no outstanding Options under the Share Option Scheme as at 31
December 2014.

The Directors and senior management receive compensation in the form of
salaries, benefits in kind and discretionary bonuses by reference to salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and the performance of
the Group. The Group also reimburses them for expenses which are
necessarily and reasonably incurred for the provision of services to the Group
or executing their functions in relation to the operations of the Group. The
Group regularly reviews and determines the remuneration and compensation
packages of the Directors and senior management, by reference to, among
other things, market level of salaries paid by comparable companies, the
respective responsibilities of the Directors and the performance of the Group.

The Remuneration Committee review the remuneration and compensation
packages of the Directors and senior management by reference to their
responsibilities, work load, the time devoted to the Group, and performance
of the Group. The Directors and senior management may also receive
Options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid individuals
of the Group are set out in Note 9 and Note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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The Directors as of 31 December 2014 and up to the date of this report are
named as follows:

Executive Directors

Sun Jiangtao (Chief Executive Officer)™
Tang Bin

Non-executive Directors

Wei Zhonghua (Chairman)*
Zhang Zhen
Guo Jia

Independent Non-executive Directors

Yang Guang™
Hou Dong"™N
He Qinghua®

A: Member of the Audit Committee
R: Member of the Remuneration Committee
N: Member of the Nomination Committee

In accordance with Articles 84(1) and (2) of the Articles of Association, Mr.
Wei Zhonghua (‘Mr. Wei”), Mr. He Qinghua (“Mr. He”) and Mr. Hou Dong (“Mr.
Hou”) will retire from office by rotation and eligible themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (“AGM”).

Profiles of the Directors and senior management of the Group are set out on
pages 14 to 17 of this annual report. Directors’ other particulars are contained
elsewhere in this annual report.
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The Executive Directors have entered into service agreements with the
Company on 9 November 2013, which will continue thereafter unless and
until it is terminated by the Company or the Director giving to the other not
less than three months’ prior notice in writing. Each of the Executive Directors
is entitled to a discretionary bonus as determined by the Board.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

The Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors
(“INEDs”) also entered into letters of appointment with the Company for two
years on 9 November 2013. The Non-executive Directors were not entitled to
receive any director fees or other remuneration. The annual emolument of
each INED was HK$60,000.

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below, none of the Directors had a significant beneficial
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party during the Year.

During the Year and up to the date of this report, none of the Directors are
considered to have interests in a business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group and any
other conflicts of interest, as required to be disclosed under Rule 11.04 of the
GEM Listing Rules.
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As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Company entered into a deed of non-
competition (the “Non-Competition Undertakings”) with Mr. Wei Zhonghua,
Mr. Sun Jiangtao, Swift Well Limited and Data King Limited (the “Controlling
Shareholders”) on 9 November 2013 regarding certain non-competition
undertakings given by each of the Controlling Shareholders in favour of the
Company (for itself and as trustee for its subsidiaries). A summary of the
principal terms of the Non-Competition Undertakings is set out in the section
headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

The INEDs have reviewed the compliance by each of the Controlling
Shareholders with the Non-Competition Undertakings.

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” below, there is no material contract between the Group and the
controlling shareholder or its subsidiaries during the Year.

The related party transactions set out in Note 31(a) and Note 31(c) to the
consolidated financial statements constitute continuing connected
transactions exempted from the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The Company confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules and
the transactions were in the ordinary and usual course of business.

Shenzhoufu (Beijing) Software Technology Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhoufu Software”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has entered into certain contracts
(the “Structured Contracts”) with Beijing Tianijiyilian Technology Co., Ltd. (“Beijing
TJYL”) and its equity holders, namely Mr. Sun Jiangtao, an Executive Director
and the chief executive officer, Mr. Wei Zhonghua, the chairman and a Non-
Executive Director and Mr. Wei Chunming. Details of the Structured Contracts
are set out in the “Structured Contracts” paragraph under the section headed
“Connected Transactions” on pages 262 to 265 of the Prospectus. The
transactions (consulting and technical supporting services) under structure
contracts carried out during the year ended 31 December 2014 were
approximately RMB34,613,000 and the amounts have been eliminated in the
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
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Pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules, Beijing TJYL is a connected person of the
Company and the transactions contemplated under the Structured Contracts
are continuing connected transactions of the Company.

The INEDs of the Company have reviewed the Structured Contracts and
confirmed that: (1) the transactions carried out during the Year had been in
accordance with the relevant provisions of the Structured Contracts and had
been operated so that the revenue generated by Beijing TJYL had been
substantially retained by Shenzhoufu Software; (2) no dividends or other
distributions had been made by Beijing TJYL to the holders of its equity
interests which were not otherwise subsequently assigned or transferred to
the Group; and (3) all new contracts entered into, renewed or reproduced
between the Group and Beijing TJYL for the Year were fair and reasonable, or
advantageous so far as the Group was concerned and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

BDO Limited (“BDQ”), Certified Public Accountants of Hong Kong, the
Company’s independent auditor, was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to
Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. BDO has issued a letter to the Board containing
its findings and unqualified conclusions in respect of the Group’s continuing
connected transactions disclosed above in accordance with Rule 20.38 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of
the laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO”)) which were required: (a) to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken
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or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or (b) pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register as referred to therein, or (c)
pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

Long positions
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Appropriate

Number of percentage of

issued the issued shares of

Name of Directors Capacity/Nature of interests shares held the Company "°?

L[ NN

e 8T ERITRAG

EEng S EmtE IR 45 8 AT D=

Mr. Wei Zhonghua Interest of a controlled corporation ™" 127,141,873 26.49%
BpELRLE IR HE B ey pE s Y

Mr. Sun Jiangtao Interest of a controlled corporation M2 109,721,027 22.86%

RILEESE R EE s R
Notes:
1. Details of the interest in the Company held by Swift Well Limited are set out in

the section headed “Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” below.

2. Details of the interest in the Company held by Data King Limited are set out in
the section headed “Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” below.

3. The percentage of shareholding was calculated based on the Company’s total
issued share capital of 480,000,000 Shares as at 31 December 2014.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of the Directors of
the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules.
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As at 31 December 2014, so far as it was known by or otherwise notified to
any Directors or the chief executive of the Company, the particulars of the
corporations or persons (other than a Director or the chief executive of the
Company) which had 5% or more interests in the Shares and the underlying
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Shares as recorded in the register kept under section 336 of the SFOwere as TR A BB IN FHIF M T
follows:
Appropriate
Number of percentage of
issued issued shares of
Name of shareholders Capacity/Nature of the interests shares held the Company "°*©"
HA&RRAF
e 81T ERITRG
RERE A B REtE % 17 2 SR A
SWIFT WELL LIMITED Beneficial owner Mo " 127,141,873 26.49%
E ﬁTﬁ?& ﬁ /\(Mﬁ‘ﬁ)
DATAKING LIMITED Beneficial owner M°¢? 109,721,027 22.86%
E ﬁTﬁ?ﬁ ﬁ A (GER)
IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH Beneficial owner M°¢9 81,122,700 16.90%
FUNDIIL.P. Bl AME
IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH Interest of a controlled corporation 81,122,700 16.90%
FUND Il ASSOCIATES L.P. o | Sk (B ) A S (HES)
IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND Interest of a controlled corporation 87,757,200 18.28%
GP I ASSOCIATES LTD. o | Sk (B ) A S (D)
Ho Chising Interest of a controlled corporation 87,757,200 18.28%
5218 K B RO 4 2 (MEY
Zhou Quan Interest of a controlled corporation 87,757,200 18.28%
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VENTECH CHINA Il SICAR Beneficial owner M°¢® 35,409,900 7.38%
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Notes:

1. SWIFT WELL LIMITED is owned as to 95% by Mr. Wei Zhonghua, the chairman
and a non-executive director of the Company, and 5% by Mr. Wei Chunming.
Under the SFO, Mr. Wei Zhonghua is deemed to be interested in all the Shares in
which SWIFT WELL LIMITED is interested.

2. DATA KING LIMITED is wholly owned by Mr. Sun Jiangtao, an executive director
and the chief executive officer of the Company. Under the SFO, Mr. Sun Jiangtao
is deemed to be interested in all the Shares in which DATA KING LIMITED is
interested.

& IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND I L.P. which owned 81,122,700 Shares is
an exempted limited partnership registered in the Cayman lIslands. Its general
partner is IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND Il ASSOCIATES L.P. while the
general partner of IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND Il ASSOCIATES L.P. is
IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND GP Il ASSOCIATES LTD. which is a limited
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. Moreover, IDG-ACCEL CHINA
GROWTH FUND GP Il ASSOCIATES LTD. is the general partner of IDG CHINA
INVESTORS Il L.P. which owned 6,634,500 Shares. Under the SFO, IDG-ACCEL
CHINA GROWTH FUND II ASSOCIATES L.P. is deemed to be interested in all
the Shares in which IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND Il L.P. is interested,
and IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND GP Il ASSOCIATES LTD. is deemed to
be interested in all the Shares in which IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND Il L.P.
and IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND Il ASSOCIATES L.P. are interested.

4. Ho Chising is a controlling shareholder who is holding 50% shares of IDG-
ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND GP Il ASSOCIATES LTD. and he is deemed to
be interested in all the Shares in which IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND GP
I ASSOCIATES LTD. is interested.

5. Zhou Quan is the other controlling shareholder who is holding 50% shares of
IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND GP Il ASSOCIATES LTD. and he is deemed
to be interested in all the Shares in which IDG-ACCEL CHINA GROWTH FUND
GP I ASSOCIATES LTD. is interested.

6. The general partner of VENTECH CHINA Il SICAR (“VENTECH”) is VENTECH
CHINA SARL, a private limited liability company registered in Luxembourg. Under
the SFO, VENTECH CHINA SARL is deemed to be interested in all the Shares in
which VENTECH is interested.

7. The percentage of shareholding was calculated based on the Company’s total
issued share capital of 480,000,000 Shares as at 31 December 2014.

Save as disclosed above, no party had informed the Company that he/she/it
had interest or short positions in any issued share capital of the Company as
at 31 December 2014.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEEHS (HA)

At no time during the Year were the rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director
or the chief executive of the Company or their respective spouse or children
under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company or its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire such rights or benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

The Company has received written confirmations of independence from each
INED, namely Mr. Yang Guang, Mr. Hou Dong and Mr. He Qinghua, pursuant
to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. As at the date of this report, the
Company still considers the INEDs to be independent.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the Company
has maintained a sufficient public float (i.e. at least 25% of the issued Shares
were held by the public) as required under Rule 17.38A of the GEM Listing
Rules during the Year.

As notified by the Company’s compliance adviser, Quam Capital Limited
(“Quam”), except for the compliance adviser agreement entered into between
the Company and Quam on the Listing Date, neither the compliance adviser
nor its directors, employees or close associates (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) had any interests in relation to the Company or any member of
the Group (including options or rights to subscribe for such securities) as at
31 December 2014, which is required to be notified to the Company pursuant
to Rule 6A.32 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 35 to 43 of this annual report.

Based on the abundant experience and brand accumulation in the internet
digital products and electronic commerce transaction area, the Group will
gradually expand the internet finance business in 2015.

As at 20 January 2015, the subsidiary of the Group, Shen Zhou Xing Limited
(“Shen Zhou Xing”) invested RMB3,000,000 in Beijing Zhangzhong
Technology Co., Ltd. Jt REREHLARAF]) (“Zhangzhong”), a company
providing peer-to-peer (“P2P”) internet financial service, and operating a P2P

Eoetl

product, being “Instant Loan” (‘B & f&3X”"), with a shareholding of 30%.

Another subsidiary of the Group, Beijing Tianjiyilian Technology Co., Ltd.
(“TJYL”) entered into an investment agreement with Beijing Wanlefu
Technology Limited “JERITENEHEARAE" (“Wanlefu”) on 23 January
2015, which provides that TJYL will invest RMB1.020 million in Wanlefu, for
51% of its shares. The principal business of Wanlefu is to provide petty
consumer credit.

At the end of February 2015, the above two companies invested by the
Group entered into investment agreement with well-known investors and
investment institutions with a total amount of US$7 milion. The value
assessed to the invested companies rapidly increased which in turn increased
the fair value of the Group in these two investments, representing a growth of
20 times. Meanwhile, the shareholding of the Group in the investment of
Zhangzhong and Wanlefu had been diluted to 21.36% and 46.9%,
respectively.

In February 2015, the Group invested RMB1,000,000 in a company which
engages in providing technologies and services for high frequency trading
and market maker trading with digital currency represented by Bitcoin, with a
shareholding of 7% which further enhanced the Group’s investment in digital
currency sectors. As of now, the Group has formed layout in digital currency
asset trading, high frequency trading technology, information and social
communication.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEEHS (HA)

After the completion the above investments, the Group’s business and
product line rapidly further expand from providing online trading service,
distribution of game products and operation of Game Review Website to
providing small credit consumption, P2P internet financial and digital currency
online trading service to customers through platforms of Wanlefu, Instant
Loan and digital currency.

The Audit Committee of the Company consists of three members, namely Mr.
He Qinghua and Mr. Hou Dong, both INEDs and Mr. Wei Zhonghua, a non-
executive Director. Mr. He Qinghua is the chairman of the Audit Committee. It
has reviewed with management the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Company for the Year.

There has been no change of independent auditor in the past three years.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the Year have been
audited by BDO which will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for re-
appointment at the forthcoming AGM. Having approved by the Board upon
the Audit Committee’s recommendation, a resolution to re-appoint BDO as
the independent auditor and to authorise the Directors to fix its remuneration
will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

By order of the Board
Wei Zhonghua
Chairman

13 March 2015
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Corporate Governance Report

It is the belief of the Board that good corporate governance plays a vital part
in maintaining the success of the Company. The Board and the senior
management are dedicated to establishing and maintaining a high level of
corporate governance. Various measures have been adopted to enhance the
management efficiency of the Company and thus to protect the interest of the
shareholders.

During the Year, the Company had applied the principles and complied with
all applicable code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM
Listing Rules (the “CG Code”) except the following deviation as stated below:

Pursuant to Code Provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the Chairman of the Board
should attend the annual general meeting of the Company (the “AGM”).
However, Mr. Wei Zhonghua, the Chairman of the Board, was unable to
attend the Annual General Meeting held on 25 June 2014 due to other
business engagements. Mr. Sun Jiangtao, an Executive Directors and Chief
Executive Officer acted as chairman of the AGM to ensure an effective
communication with the shareholders.

The Company held an annual general meeting on 26 June 2014 in Hong
Kong (the “AGM”) so as to establish a good communication channel with its
shareholders.

Mr. Sun Jiangtao and Mr. Tang Bin attended the AGM.

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings as set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules (the “required standard of
dealings”) as its own code of conduct for dealings in the securities of the
Company by the Directors made by the Company.

Following a specific enquiry of all Directors made by the Company, each of
them confirmed that he/she had complied with the required standard of
dealings and its code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors during the Year.
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Corporot@ Governance Report (Continued)

TEERHE (A)

During the Year, the Board comprised two Executive Directors, namely Mr.
Sun Jiangtao (Chief Executive Officer) and Mr. Tang Bin, three Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Wei Zhonghua (Chairman), Mr. Zhang Zhen and Ms.
Guo Jia and three INEDs, namely Mr. Yang Guang, Mr. Hou Dong and Mr.
He Qinghua.

Relationship

There was no financial, business, family or other material relationship among
the Directors. The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out in
the section headed “Directors and Senior Management Profiles” of this annual
report.

Roles

The two Executive Directors are responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and overseeing the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions
and performances and are collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.

The three INEDs are responsible for ensuring a high standard of financial and
other mandatory reporting of the Board as well as providing a balance in the
Board in order to effectively exercise independent judgement on the corporate
actions of the Company so as to protect shareholders’ interest and overall
interest of the Group.

Throughout the Year, the Company had three INEDs and at all times met the
requirement of the GEM Listing Rules that the number of INEDs must
represent at-least one-third of the Board members and at least one of the
INEDs has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The Company has received from each of the INEDs an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers
that all the INEDs to be independent.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

The Board is collectively responsible for the oversight of the management of
the Company’s business and the Group’s affairs with the objective of
enhancing shareholder value through granting authority to the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee. The
Board approves and monitors the development and implementation of the
Group’s business policies, strategic decisions and directions. The Board is
also responsible for reviewing monthly financial information, as well as
reviewing and approving quarterly, interim and annual results, annual budget,
and other business matters and all other functions reserved to the Board
under the Company’s articles of association (the “Articles of Association”).
The Board may from time to time delegate certain functions to senior
management of the Group if and when considered appropriate. The senior
management is mainly responsible for the execution of the business plans,
strategies and policies adopted by the Board and assigned to it from time to
time.

The Board and its Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Audit Committee are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses, in order to better
discharge their supervisory duties to the Company.

In accordance with Rule A.1.8 of the CG Code, appropriate insurance cover
has been arranged by the Company in order to provide protection in respect
of legal action against its Directors.

Meeting

During the Year, the Board had scheduled four regular meetings each at
approximately quarterly interval. In addition, special Board meetings are held
when required. Formal notice for each proposed regular meeting will be given
at least 14 days before the day of the meeting. With regard to special Board
meetings, notices will be issued within a reasonable period. The meeting
agenda and all the accompanying documents relating to the proposed Board
meeting will be sent to each Director at least three days before the day of the
proposed meeting to ensure that the Directors have sufficient time to review
relevant documents and prepare for the meeting. Directors can attend the
Board meeting in person or through other electronic means of
communication. Each Director has attended the four regular meetings in
person or through other electronic means of communication with no absence
during the Year.

The Company Secretary or his delegate is responsible for keeping all Board
meetings minutes. Draft minutes are normally circulated to Directors for
comments within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is
open for Directors’ inspection. According to the GEM Listing Rules, any
Directors and their close associates with a material interest in the transactions
to be discussed at the Board meetings will abstain from voting on resolutions
approving such transactions and are not to be counted in the quorum at
meetings.

G EERRE (H)

EEQURABRREERER EBRET
ERZZEE REAZBELFHMZES  HF
EBARAERBELCRASHEEH Z2ER
EEeEMLEREASEEBRR - BAOR
ERTANGENREN: BEHEAZUMBEE
o BmHREFE T8 FEXA FE
BELEBEEEFRAREEEREARF
ZHEBER@N((HABERA) AENE
B EFFUITERERREERF B A
SESREEERBEETRE - SREEE
TZRERTEZFTERARAIFOIRTHD
FETEEHE - REE K 7t e

ETghETENREZZES FHEZES
MEZEESNNEERGESRBUEES
R BRBEARAAE UEFNETRSY
RRARIMEBRE -

BREBECEXEARATUEAISG ARAFERE
EBEEERR AHERERENERT
BREFRHERE -

L

RAFEE BEFARTHRAEHREHE KL
BEEAR R U EUNERSARES
gRleZ BRAEMERIEABEER
ERBETHZLUBEL - EREFS R
Alg A ERRAGTRSG SRFE
LEMZEEEERXHEERTAREH
BHMEL=R2HE2XE2REE UK
EEFANTRHABHNEEXHRAREHFEL
AN BB EFARFAEBEMCET AN
TAZNEFEEZ - AFEARANORE
R TREFERILFLERETA
RBEBRE e

P,
= %

~ 8
B

ARAMEREZZRRAERTFMBESS
CRLH EFECRCHBIUIBRRNERE
REAENEAREMEESENLRLE
R-BFNEMAKKER - REBEAERLETR
A FREEREZEEBHEA WMREESH
BREAORZTEERNED UABRHEZR
ZHRBEMERT BT AGENEE
ABe



Corporot@ Governance Report (Continued)

TEERHE (A)

Directors’ Induction and Continuing Professional
Development

Each newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and full
awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations under the GEM Listing
Rules and relevant statutory requirements. The Company is dedicated to
arrange appropriate induction for the continuous professional development
for all Directors at the Company’s expenses to develop, replenish and refresh
their knowledge and skills.

The Company will from time to time provide briefings to all Directors to
develop and refresh the Directors’ duties and responsibilities. All Directors are
also encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the Company’s
expense.

During the Year, all Directors have participated in continuous professional
development by attending conferences and internal training as regards
corporate governance, laws and regulations, the GEM Listing Rules, and
reading materials relevant to their duties, responsibilities and the Group’s
business in order to develop, refresh and update their knowledge and skills.

Training records for the Year have been provided by all Directors to the
Company.

The chairman of the Company is Mr. Wei Zhonghua, and the chief executive
officer of the Company is Mr. Sun Jiangtao. The roles of the chairman and
chief executive are separated and exercised by different individuals.

The Non-executive Directors and the INEDs had entered into service
contracts with the Company for two years on 9 November 2013.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

The Board has established, with written terms of reference, three Board
Committees, namely the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties.

The written terms of reference for each Board Committee are in line with the
GEM Listing Rules and they are posted on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company.

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 9 November 2013
with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code as set out in
Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee, among other things, are to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at
least annually and make recommendations to the Board regarding the
appointment of Directors and candidates to fill vacancies on the Board. The
Nomination Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Yang Guang,
Mr. Hou Dong and Mr. Sun Jiangtao. Mr. Yang Guang was the chairman of
the Nomination Committee.

During the Year, one meeting was held by the Nomination Committee to
review the structure and composition of the Board and review the Board
diversity policy, and each member of the Nomination Committee attended the
meeting.

Remuneration Committee

The Company established a Remuneration Committee on 9 November 2013
with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code as set out in
Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee, among other things, are to make recommendations
to the Board on the overall remuneration policy and structure relating to all
Directors and senior management of the Group and to ensure that none of
the Directors determines his/her own remuneration. The Remuneration
Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Hou Dong, Mr. Yang
Guang and Mr. Sun Jiangtao. Mr. Hou Dong is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

During the Year, one meeting was held by the Remuneration Committee to
review the remuneration package of the Directors and senior management,
and each member of the Remuneration Committee attended the meeting.
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TEERHE (A)

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the senior management of the
Company are set out in Note 9, Note 10 and Note 31(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration of
the members of the senior management (other than the Directors) whose
particulars are contained in the section headed “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report for the Year by band
is set out below:
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individuals
Remuneration band 3 BN & AE
Less than HK$1,000,000 71,000,000 7T 3

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

1,000,001 % 7T & 1,500,000 7% 7T -

Audit Committee

The Company established an Audit Committee on 9 November 2013 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG code as set out in
Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee, among other things, are to make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor; to
review the financial statements and provide material advice in respect of
financial reporting; to oversee internal control procedures of the Company;
and to review arrangements for employees to raise concerns about financial
reporting improprieties. At present, the Audit Committee of the Company
consists of three members, namely Mr. He Qinghua, Mr. Hou Dong and Mr.
Wei Zhonghua. Mr. He Qinghua is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the Year. All members of the
Audit Committee had attended each meeting.

The Audit Committee meetings reviewed the first and third quarterly results
and interim results for the year and annual results of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2013 and the accounting principles and practice
adopted by the Group and recommended to the Board for considering the
re-appointment BDO Limited, certified public accountants as the Company’s
independent auditor at the AGM held in June 2014.

The annual results for the Year has been reviewed by the Audit Committee at
its meeting held on 13 March 2015 before submission to the Board for
approval. The members of the Audit Committee considered that the results
were prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards and the
GEM Listing Rules and has made sufficient disclosure.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy and discussed all measurable
objectives set for implementing the policy.

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board
members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of
the Company’s business. All Board appointments will continue to be made
on a merit basis with due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board
members. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, experience (professional or otherwise), skills and knowledge.
The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

Corporate Governance Functions of the Board

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions
of the Company, which are set out in the written terms of reference. The
Board, among other matters, has reviewed this corporate governance report
in discharge of its corporate governance functions, ensuring compliance with
the GEM Listing Rules.

The fees charged by the external auditor of the Company in respect of audit
services provided to the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31
December 2014 amounted to HK$559,000 (2013: HK$458,500). The amount
of non-audit service fee was HK$40,000 (2013: nil).

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group and ensures that the financial statements have
adopted the accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
complied with the requirements of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the GEM Listing Rules. The Board is also
responsible for the filing of appropriate accounting records that reasonably
and accurately disclose the financial position of the Group at any time.
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Corporot@ Governance Report (Continued)

TEERHE (A)

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report.

The Board has overall responsibilities for the internal control system of the
Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board is also responsible for
maintaining sound and effective internal control system to safeguard the
interests of the shareholders and the assets of the Group. The Board had
engaged KAP Certified Public Accountants Limited to conduct an audit on
the internal control of the Group for the Year, which reported the audit results
directly to the Board.

The Board considers that the internal controlling system of the Group
operated efficiently for the Year.

The Company Secretary is Mr. Kwok Siu Man, who has been appointed by
the Board since 9 November 2013 and has been so nominated by
Boardroom Corporate Services (HK) Limited (“Boardroom”) under an
engagement letter made between the Company and Boardroom. The primary
person at the Company with whom Mr. Kwok has been contacting is Ms.
Tang Yanhua, the chief financial officer of the Company, in relation to
corporate secretarial matters. As Mr.
company secretary of a Hong Kong Hang Seng Index constituent stock
company in 1991 and has been acting in such capacity for a number of other
reputable companies listed on the Stock Exchange at material times since
then, he is not required to have at least 15 hours of relevant professional
training in the Year under the GEM Listing Rules.

Kwok was first appointed as the

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an
Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM”)

Shareholders are encouraged to attend all general meetings of the Company.
Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, shareholders holding not
less than 10% of the paid up capital of the Company can convene an EGM
by depositing a requisition in writing to the Directors or the Company
Secretary of the Company for the purpose of requiring the convening of the
EGM. The written requisition shall be deposited to the Company Secretary at
31/F, 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send the original
duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case
may be) to the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong and
provide their full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

Procedures for Shareholders to Send Enquires to the
Board

Shareholders are encouraged to communicate with the Company for any
enquiries in relation to the Group by contacting the Group’s Investor Relations
team at investor@shenzhouxing.com.cn. Upon receipt of the enquiries, the
Investor Relations team will forward shareholders’ enquiries and concerns to
the Board, Board committees or management as appropriate. Alternatively,
shareholders can put forward any proposals at a shareholders’ meeting.

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director

Subject to the statutes and the provisions of the Articles of Association, the
Company may from time to time in general meeting by Ordinary Resolution
elect any person to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an
additional director.

A shareholder may propose a person (other than himself/herself) for election
as a Director by lodging the following documents at the Company’s place of
business in Hong Kong at 31/F, 148 Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong,
for the attention of the Company Secretary:

1. a notice in writing of the intention to propose that person for election as
a Director; and

2. a notice in writing by that person of his/her willingness to be elected as
a Director, together with that person’s information as required to be
disclosed under rule 17.50(2) of the GEM Listing Rules.

Such notices shall be lodged no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election at least seven (7)
clear days before the date of the general meeting. The period for lodgement
of such notices shall be at least seven (7) clear days in length.

Pursuant to Rule 17.102 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has
published on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company its Memorandum and Articles of Association. During the Year, no
amendments were made to the constitutional documents of the Company.
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Independent Auditor's Report
B 3% LA )

Tel : +852 2218 8288

Fax: +852 2815 2239

www.bdo.com.hk
|

54 - +852 2218 8288
{8H : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA BINARY SALE TECHNOLOGY LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Binary Sale
Technology Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”)
set out on pages 46 to 104, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2014, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
EATHER11158
Ik & H2518

B aMNEFHERMERARDZTRR
(RASHEEEIMELZ BRI A)

ELEDERHINNFEAT104E N B FHE
BMERARTERA] REK B QA (58
[BEEE)2REMBHRE  2ER2014F12
A31BZ&EA “ﬂﬁﬂ%ﬂﬁiﬁﬁwxﬁﬁ?t
ZBLEFEZRAZARSER HEAESE
%Di‘%&??éﬁim%ﬁ*LA&IE@;#BZ
B2 R CH fth B A2 B K o

ARRIEERERBEEESHMAERMZ
é-i%%i%#&%/ﬁﬂﬂ&%%< A& G < KT
RERBZEGAMBHREANFEEEMAF
ZRR VTEEERBRERREAMBEERA

BEOAMPEE UEREAMHERER 2K
HTEFEARRFHAERMERNERNER

BRat o

BEEARBESZEREZERAY
BHRRERER - K#Kz%*ﬂﬁ%ﬁ%mzﬁﬂﬂ%
RER ETUERENZ2H KRtz K
BETAREEMRAZ EEFRIRARSE
ZABRAEFMEMALTEERAEEE-

E*ETF%‘/%QHEW“A%E%Z% =&t
ETESRTIE - ZFEABREZET
SERTHE WAREI RETEZ KA R
ZERAVBRERE I FEEFMERXN
it

\



Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2014 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirement of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Alfred Lee

Practising Certificate Number P04960

Hong Kong, 13 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
RETEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & ZE2014F12A31BILFE

2014 2013
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Ff 5 AR®T R ARETTT

Revenue g A 7 63,094 61,228
Cost of revenue I A B AR (20,382) (19,257)
Gross profit £ H 42,712 41,971
Other income and gains H At U A R g 7 1,689 273
Change in fair value of financial assets at BEAFEGTABZENS M

fair value through profit or loss BEANTFEZS 23 (400) —
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX (3,579) (3,086)
Administrative expenses THR X (13,022) (9,783)
Listing expenses EmRAX = (8,310)
Profit before income tax expense B BT 15 B B 2 A 8 27,400 21,065
Income tax expense P8 #im 11 (6,789) (6,179)
Profit and total comprehensive income FREARZE K=

for the year 4a % 20,611 14,886

Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive income LA & IA FE (R & s )~

for the year attributable to: (BE)RE2E W mEEE
Owners of the Company ZIN/NETE? =N 20,757 14,886
Non-controlling interests FE 12 AR = (146) —
20,611 14,886
Earnings per share (RMB cents) RAEF(ARESD)

— Basic —EK 14 4.32 4.03




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mEBBEMRRER

As at 31 December 2014 2014912 H31H

2014 2013
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B & AR®T R ARETTT

Assets BE
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment e N 15 1,539 1,542
Intangible assets EWEE 16 1,804 333
Available-for-sale financial assets A ESREE 18 1,300 —
Total non-current assets FRBEEBT 4,643 1,875
Current assets REBEE
Trade receivables Z 5 R W8 19 3,391 5,100
Prepayments, deposits and AR Be REAM
other receivables & W sk IR 20 44,825 23,252
Inventories FE 21 36,111 18,166
Amounts due from related companies FEU BAE N A I8 22 3,973 6,087
Financial assets at fair value through EAFEGFAERZN
profit or loss SREE 23 600 —
Cash and cash equivalents HEeRESZEY 24 64,820 68,826
Total current assets MEBEEMETE 153,720 121,431
Liabilities =R
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables B 5 T 38 25 41,989 34,399
Other payables and accruals HEMEMNKELRESER 26 9,746 4,884
Current tax liabilities BNERFi 7S B fE 286 1,725
Total current liabilities ME) B E4EEE 52,021 41,008
Net current assets RBEEFRE 101,699 80,423



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
RE B MR & ()

As at 31 December 2014 201412 A31H

2014 2013
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
Ff 5 AR®T R ARETTT

Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities BEERKEE 28 4,366 2,403
Total non-current liabilities FEREBEEEE 4,366 2,403
NET ASSETS EERE 101,976 79,895
Equity attributable to owners of KATEEA
the Company s
Issued capital B BT 29 2,941 2,941
Reserves &1 97,711 76,954
100,652 79,895
Non-controlling interests FERER 1,324 —
TOTAL EQUITY AR 101,976 79,895

Wei Zhonghua

Mz

Director

EF

On behalf of the Board
REESE

Sun Jiangtao
BRiIE
Director

EF



Statement of Financial Position

B # R &

As at 31 December 2014 2014912 H31H

2014 2013
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B & AR®T R ARETTT

Assets B5E
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary KK B R AEE 17 = —
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables TEAT Jo EL th fE W SR IR 20 161 =
Amount due from subsidiaries UL B A B 1A 22 49,923 48,317
Cash and cash equivalents ReEkREEED 29 29
Total current assets mEAEMRTE 50,113 48,346
Current liabilities FREEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTHT B A B IE 27 12,298 9,297
Other payables and accruals Hiv B RIBREFE A 948 383
Total current liabilities mE B EERE 13,246 9,680
Net current assets B A EER 36,867 38,666
NET ASSETS BEEFHE 36,867 38,666
Equity =
Issued capital BB ITRR A 29 2,941 2,941
Reserves ER 30 33,926 35,725
TOTAL EQUITY ERBEE 36,867 38,666

On behalf of the Board
REEZTE

Wei Zhonghua

Sun Jiangtao

Bz BIE
Director Director
FE =



Consolidated Statement of Changes in €quity

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & ZE2014F12A31BILFE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

ADREE ARG ESR
Non-
Issued Share Capital ~ Statutory  Retained controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve  earnings Total interests Total equity

BRIRA ROEE BLXREE EERE  RERF Bct FERER BRER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETE ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARBETT ARBTT ARETT ARETR
(note 30(@)) (note 30(b)) (note 30(c)) (note 30(d))
(Fff7£30(@)) (P #E30(0)) (PHEE30()) (Ff=E30(d))
e Y Y N A

At 1 January 2013 Mn2013%1 A1 8 — - 1,371 7,318 55,887 64,576 = 64,576
Profit and total F s Al &

comprehensive income W@ %

for the year = = - — 14,886 14,886 - 14,886
Issue of shareson group £ B E A M EITH

reorganisation (note 29(b) AR {7 (Pt 5 29(b)) 7 - - - (7) - - -
Issue of new shares by BBEERTH

way of placing (note 29(c)  ¥7 AR5 (Fif ££29(c)) 785 50,098 = - - 50,833 = 50,833
Dividends declared and BEERRBIRST

paid (note 13) AR 2. (B £ 13) = = = = (60,400)  (50,400) - (60,400)
Issue of shares on BAR(CETHRG

capitalisation (note 29(d)) (K &29(d)) 2,169 (2,199) - - - - - -
Appropriation to statutory B¢ AVEE

reserve — — — 2,676 (2,676) = = —

At 31 December 2013and ~ R2013F 12 A31H

1 January 2014 K 20141 H1H 2,941 47,899 1,371 9,994 17,690 79,895 - 79,895
Profit/(loss) and total FREF/(EE)

comprehensive income kEERGBE

for the year — - - - 20,757 20,757 (146) 20,611
Capital contribution from & & ii B 2 &1 3E

non-controlling equity TR ESEAE

holders of a subsidiary MERTE - = = = - - 1,470 1,470
Appropriation to statutory & A% E i &

reserve - - - 2,584 (2,584) - = =

At 31 December 2014 2014512 A31 H 2,941 47,899 1,371 12,578 35,863 100,652 1,324 101,976




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & ZE2014F12A31BILFE

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETT
T

Profit before income tax expense BT B H B X AE R 27,400 21,065
Adjustments for: R

Interest income AMEMA (685) (66)

Depreciation of property, Y - HE LR

plant and equipment e 554 482

Amortisation of intangible assets & B B 365 214

Written back of trade payables B 5 {5 2kIE B O] - 204

Impairment loss on prepayments A FREREE 206 —

Change in fair value of financial assets at ERATEFTAEZNS

fair value through profit or loss BENTFEZS 23 400 =

Operating profit before EEECEIALE

working capital changes S A 28,240 21,899
Decrease in trade receivables B 5 e W F IR 1,709 2,713
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, AR Re REMER

deposits and other receivables FRIE (38 n), kA (21,460) 6,117
Increase in inventories 7 &8N (17,945) (152)
Decrease in amounts due from JE Uk B8 28 N B FR IR

related companies 2,114 48,982
Increase in trade payables E 5 P ZIE 7,590 1,017
Increase/(decrease) in other payables H ith fE {5 Z00E K FE AT & A

and accruals 80 Gt 2) 4,862 (660)
Decrease in amount due to FEAT — Al B3 A Rl 5K IR

a related company DA = (14,570)
Cash generated from operations HERBHREE 5,110 65,446
Income taxes paid SRR (6,265) (9,516)
Net cash (used in)/generated from KeExi (FfTA)/FMiESRE

operating activities FE (1,155) 55,930
Cash flows from investing activities RETHHBREESRE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE WEMXE (551) (444)
Purchase of intangible assets BERLEE (366) (10)
Purchase of available-for-sale BEARLECHEE

financial assets (1,300) —
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BERATETAEBZHN

through profit or loss CREE (1,000) —

Interest received 2 U F & 366 66




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

GERTRER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & ZE2014F12A31BILFE

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARET T
I
Net cash used in investing activities BEITBHMAES TS (2,851) (388)
Cash flows from financing activities RETHEECHSRE
Dividends paid BRI B = (50,400
Net proceeds from issue of ordinary shares, BT E R 2 TS RE
net of share issuing costs R (B HBR BATROA) - 50,833
Repayment of borrowing BEREE — (5,988)
Net cash used in financing activities METEHFARESFE - (5,555)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash HERBSZEEYRD)
and cash equivalents 320 H AR (4,006) 49,987
Cash and cash equivalents FPEEEESE
at the beginning of year ZEY 68,826 18,839
Cash and cash equivalents FREERES
at the end of year £EY 64,820 68,826
Analysis of the balances of cash ReRBEEEBYEH
and cash equivalents Gk
Cash and bank balances e RIRITE R 64,820 68,826




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & ZE2014F12A31BILFE

China Binary Sale Technology Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in the
Cayman Islands on 11 May 2011. Its issued shares are listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company’s registered office
and principal place of business are located at Floor 4, Willow House,
Cricket Square, P.O. Box 2804, Grand Cayman KY1-1112, Cayman
Islands and Room BO1, 15th Floor, Horizon International Tower, No. 6
Zhichun Road, Haidian District, Beijing, the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) respectively.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are principally
engaged in providing online transaction services by facilitating
transactions between online game operators and online game users,
and providing mobile top-up service to mobile subscribers in the PRC.

Pursuant to a group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) to rationalise
the structure of the Group in preparation for the listing of the
Company’s shares on the GEM of the Stock Exchange, the Company
became the holding company of the Group. Details of the
Reorganisation are as set out in “History and Development” of the
prospectus issued by the Company dated 27 November 2013.

(a) Basis of presentation

As a result of the Reorganisation mentioned in note 1, the Group
is regarded as a continuing entity resulting from the
Reorganisation since management and equity holders of the
entities comprising the Group which took part in the
Reorganisation remained the same before and after the
Reorganisation. Consequently, immediately after the
Reorganisation, there was a continuation of risks and benefits to
the ultimate controlling parties that existed prior to the
Reorganisation.
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(b)

()

(d)

(a)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and Interpretations (hereinafter
collectively referred to as the “HKFRSs”) and the disclosure
requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition,
the financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange.

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention except for the financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, which are measured at fair
values.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements have been presented in
Renminbi (“‘RMB”), which is the same as the functional currency
of the Company.

Adoption of amendments to HKFRSs — first
effective on 1 January 2014

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment entities
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011)

HK (IFRIC) 21 Levies

The adoption of these amendments has no material impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

(b)

(c)

(d)
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(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued

but are not yet effective

The Group has not early adopted the following potentially relevant
new/revised HKFRSs, which have been issued but are not yet
effective, in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers'

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets. Debt instruments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows (the business model test)
and that have contractual terms that give rise to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding (the contractual cash flow characteristics
test) are generally measured at amortised cost. Debt instruments
that meet the contractual cash flow characteristics test are
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI") if the objective of the entity’s business model is both
to hold and collect the contractual cash flows and to sell the
financial assets. Entities may make an irrevocable election at
initial recognition to measure equity instruments that are not held
for trading at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity instruments are
measured at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment model for all
financial assets not measured at FVTPL replacing the incurred
loss model in HKAS 39 and new general hedge accounting
requirements to allow entities to better reflect their risk
management activities in financial statements.
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but are not yet effective (Continued)

The new standard establishes a single revenue recognition
framework. The core principle of the framework is that an entity
should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods and services. HKFRS 15 supersedes
existing revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18
“Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts” and related
interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued (b) B 5B #F1E e 7R £ K H

th BREITEBMERE
% Al ()

BREAMATERRIE — KRR ER
BER-ERNTERNRERER
R AHAERIERR M
mEREERAERENESER
EPEEMAER MRS BB
B E ERIF165E AR AW
SERES  BREB G ERS
185 (e | - BER G ERFE 115
[ZEANIREERE-

B8 B 7% s 2RI F155% R E W
R 25 P R EO 8] 2 R

e Step1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer o F14  BRHBEEEMEIVA L

e Step2: Identify the performance obligations in the o Fo2H  BABANBAHEME
contract

e Step3:  Determine the transaction price o F3H EBTEXRFHEHE

e Step4:  Allocate the transaction price to each o FUAN NERFIBEREZREN
performance obligation E1E

e Step5:  Recognise revenue when each performance o E5F : MEBETERARMRE
obligation is satisfied TR &

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular revenue
related topics that may change the current approach taken under
HKFRS. The standard also significantly enhances the qualitative
and quantitative disclosures related to revenue.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
potential impact of these new/revised HKFRSs, but other than as
described above, the directors anticipated that the application of
other new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the Group’s financial performance and position and/or on the
disclosures set out in this report.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e BHRERME (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & ZE2014F12A31BILFE

New Companies Ordinance provisions
relating to the preparation of financial
statements

The provisions of the new Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622, in
relation to the preparation of financial statements will apply to the
Company in its first financial year beginning on or after 3 March
2014 (i.e. the financial year ending 31 December 2015).

The directors consider that there will be no impact on the
Group’s financial position or performance, however the new
Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622, would have impacts on the
presentation and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The statement of financial position of the Company
will be presented in the notes rather than a separate statement
and the related notes need not be included.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and the entities (including structured
entities) now comprising the Group. Inter-company transactions
and balances between group companies together with unrealised
profits are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the asset
transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to
exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all three of
the following elements are present: (1) power over the investee, (2)
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the investee, and (3)
the ability to use its power to affect those variable returns.
Control is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate
that there may be a change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.
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()

(d)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its purchase
price and the costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the
itemns.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised
as an expense in profit or loss during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to write off
their cost or valuation net of expected residual value over their
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The depreciation
rates, residual value and depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. The
depreciation rates are as follows:

Office equipment 5 years
Computer equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if
its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s estimated
recoverable amount.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sale proceeds and
its carrying amount, and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.

Lease

LLeases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under
operating leases net of any incentive received from the lessor are
charged to the profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.
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(d)
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(e) Intangible assets e) BEEE

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised
at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is fair value at the date of acquisition.
Subsequently, intangible assets with finite useful lives are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses.

The amortisation expense is recognised in profit or loss
and included in administrative expenses. Amortisation is
provided on a straight-line basis over its useful live as
follows:

Computer software 5-10 years

Expenditure on internally developed products is capitalised
if it can be demonstrated that:

o it is technically feasible to develop the product for it
to be sold;

. adequate resources are available to complete the
development;

° there is an intention to complete and sell the
product;

° the Group is able to sell the product; and

° sale of the product will generate future economic
benefits; and expenditure on the project can be
measured reliably.

Capitalised development costs are amortised over the
periods the Group expects to benefit from selling the
products developed. The amortisation expense is
recognised in profit or loss and included in administrative
expenses.

Development expenditure not satisfying the above criteria
and expenditure on the research phase of internal projects
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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(e)

(f)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for impairment
when there is an indication that an asset may be impaired
(see the accounting policies in respect of impairment
losses of non-financial assets in note 4(f)).

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have decreased.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value less
costs to sell and value in use) of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately. The value-in-use
calculation requires the directors to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the assets and the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value by using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the assets for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.
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(9) Financial instruments (90 €@ T H

With reference to HKAS 39 issued by the HKICPA, the
Group recognised its financial assets when it becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument and
classifies its financial assets at initial recognition, depending
on the purpose for which the asset was acquired. Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and all other financial assets are
initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
assets. Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. A
regular way purchase or sale is a purchase or sale of a
financial asset under a contract whose terms require
delivery of the asset within the time frame established
generally by regulation or convention in the marketplace
concerned.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

These assets include financial assets held for trading.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise.
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(9)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They arise principally through the provision of
goods and services to clients (trade debtors), and also
incorporate other types of contractual monetary asset.
They are initially measured at fair value plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets. At each reporting date subsequent to
initial recognition, they are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses.

Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non-derivative financial assets that are
designated as available-for-sale or are not included in other
categories of financial assets. For available-for-sale equity
investments that do not have a quoted market price in an
active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be
settled by delivery of such unquoted equity instruments,
they are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses.

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting period,
whether there is any objective evidence that financial asset
is impaired. Financial asset is impaired if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
and that event has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include:

° significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
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(9) Financial instruments (Continued) (09 €I AEum

° a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

° granting concession to a debtor because of debtor’s
financial difficulty; and

° it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

For loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
when an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, subject to a restriction that
the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have had the impairment not been recognised.

For available-for-sale financial assets

For available-for-sale equity investment that is carried at
cost, the amount of impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the asset and
the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss is not reversed.
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(9)

Financial instruments (Continued)

With reference to HKAS 39 issued by the HKICPA, the
Group recognised its financial liabilities when it becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument and
classifies its financial liabilities at initial recognition,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities were
incurred.

The Group’s financial liabilities at amortised cost, including
trade payables, other payables and accruals, and amounts
due to a related company and subsidiaries, are initially
recognised at fair value, net of directly attributable
transaction costs incurred, and are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The
related interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or
payments through the expected life of the financial asset or
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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(h)

(i)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e BHRERME (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & ZE2014F12A31BILFE

Financial instruments (Continued)

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to the
financial asset expire or when the financial asset has been
transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises all
costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Cost is calculated using the first-in first-out method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and applicable selling expenses.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from online transaction services represents service fees
received from mobile subscribers and online game users, net of
monies shared with the online game operators pursuant to the
terms of the cooperation agreements with online game
operators or the costs of mobile top-up credits sourced from
PRC telecommunication companies and their distributors.
Revenue is recognised when mobile top-up transactions have
been completed.

Revenue from profit sharing with online game operators is
recognised in monthly basis and based on the fees received from
online game users, net of monies shared with the online game
operators pursuant to the terms of the cooperation agreements
with online game operators.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE BRI (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & ZE2014F12A31BILFE

(i)

0)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from online advertising services is recognised in the
period in which the advertisement is displayed on a straight-line
basis, and when collection of the receivable is probable.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the principal
outstanding at the applicable interest rate.

Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities
adjusted for items that are non-assessable or disallowable for
income tax purposes and is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for tax
purposes. Except for recognised assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities are
recognised for all temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e BHRERME (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & ZE2014F12A31BILFE

Income taxes (Continued)

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when they
relate to items recognised to other comprehensive income in
which case the taxes are also recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by the group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic environment in
which they operate (the “functional currency”) are recorded at the
rates ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency
monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at
the end of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income, in which case, the
exchange differences are also recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Employee benefits

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in the PRC are required to participate in central pension
schemes operated by the local government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central pension schemes. The
contributions are charged to the profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension schemes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE BRI (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & ZE2014F12A31BILFE

1)

Employee benefits (continued)

The Group contributes on a monthly basis to defined
contribution housing, medical and other benefit plans
organised by the PRC government. The PRC government
undertakes to assume the benefit obligations of all existing
and retired employees under these plans. Contributions to
these plans by the Group are expensed as incurred. The
Group has no further obligations for benefits for their
qualified employees under these plans.

(m) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(n)

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, which will probably result in an
outflow of economic benefits that can be reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants that
compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognised as
revenue in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same
periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted
from the carrying amount of the asset and consequently are
effectively recognised in profit or loss over the useful life of the
asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e BHRERME (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & ZE2014F12A31BILFE

(o) Related parties

(@)

(b)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

)

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

)

(i

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B S R M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & ZE2014F12A31BILFE

(o) Related parties(continued)

(o)  (continued)

(vi) A person identified in (a)() has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity

and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic

partner;

(ii) children of that person’s spouse or domestic

partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects

both current and future periods.
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(@)

(b)

(c)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e BHRERME (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & ZE2014F12A31BILFE

Impairment allowances for trade receivables
and prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

The Group estimates the impairment allowances for trade
receivables and prepayments, deposits and other receivables by
assessing the recoverability based on credit history and prevailing
market conditions. This requires the use of estimates and
judgments. Allowances are applied to trade receivables and
prepayments, deposits and other receivables where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will affect the carrying amounts of trade
receivables and prepayments, deposits and other receivables
and thus the impairment loss in the period in which such estimate
is changed. The Group reassesses the impairment allowances at
the end of each reporting period.

Useful lives of intangible assets and
property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives
for the intangible assets and the property, plant and equipment
of the Group. The estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives of the relevant assets of similar nature
and functions. The estimated useful lives could be different as a
result of technical innovations which would affect the related
amortisation and depreciation charges included in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Estimate of income and deferred tax
provisions

The Group is subject to taxation in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgment is required in determining the amount of
provision for taxation and the timing of payment of the related
taxation. Where the final tax outcome is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences would
impact the income and deferred tax provisions in the period in
which such determination were made.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE BRI (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & ZE2014F12A31BILFE

(d) Revenue recognition in respect of online

d REXZRBEUBARR

transaction services

The Group assesses its business relationships with users of the
mobile top-up services and suppliers of mobile top-up credits
and determines that the Group is providing online transaction
services in the majority of transactions by facilitating transactions
between online game operators and online game users, and
providing mobile top-up service to mobile subscribers, and
accordingly reports revenue derived from such services on a net
basis.

In determining whether the revenue from online transaction
services shall be recorded on net basis or gross basis, the Group
has made reference to indicators and requirements stated in
HKAS 18 “Revenue”. Determining whether the Group is acting as
a principal or an agent requires judgment and consideration of all
relevant facts and circumstances, and the Group considers itself
has an agency relationship with online game operators under
HKAS 18 by assessing the following features that are arising from
its operations:

° It is the primary responsibility of the PRC
telecommunication companies and the online game
operators, and not the Group, for processing the mobile
top-up associated with the mobile top-up credits provided
to the mobile subscribers and the online game account
charging to the online game users’ accounts, respectively.

° The Group has minimal inventory risk for the transactions
with mobile top-up credits sourced from the online game
users as those mobile top-up credits were used to top up
the mobile subscriber’s requests instantaneously. Although
the Group sources some mobile top-up credits from the
PRC telecommunication companies and their distributors
as buffer stocks in case there is a shortage of mobile top-
up credits from online game users, these stocks are used
solely to facilitate the transactions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e BHRERME (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & ZE2014F12A31BILFE

(d) Revenue recognition in respect of online

(e)

transaction services (Continued)

° The service fees are usually predetermined pursuant to the
terms of the cooperation agreements with online game
operators.

° The credit risk of the Group is minimal as majority of the
mobile subscribers either pay in advance or at time of
requesting mobile top-up service, except for a minor
portion of customers who are granted with credit period.

Control over Beijing Tianjiyilian Technology
Co., Ltd. (“Beijing TJYL”)

Beijing TJYL has been owned by Mr. Sun Jiangtao and Mr. Wei
Zhonghua, the directors, and Mr. Wei Chunming, the then
director, since its establishment. Under the prevailing laws and
regulations in the PRC, companies with foreign ownership are
prohibited from engaging in the internet information services
business in the PRC. In order to enable the Company to obtain
control over Beijing TJYL and its directly owned subsidiaries,
Beijing Shenzhoufu Technology Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Shenzhoufu”),
Beijing Youxiping Technology Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Youxiping”) and
Beijing Shenzhoufu Network Technology Development Limited
(“Shenzhoufu Network”), certain structured contracts (the
“Structured Contracts”) were effectuated among Beijing TJYL,
Mr. Sun Jiangtao, Mr. Wei Zhonghua, Mr. Wei Chunming and
Shenzhoufu (Beijing) Software Technology Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhoufu
Software”) (a 100% indirectly owned subsidiary of the Company),
pursuant to which Shenzhoufu Software undertakes to provide
Beijing TJYL with certain information consulting and technical
supporting services in return for fees which represent a
substantial amount of the profit generated by Beijing TJYL from
its operation of online transaction services in the PRC.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B S R M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & ZE2014F12A31BILFE

(e) Control over Beijing Tianjiyilian Technology
Co., Ltd. (“Beijing TJYL”) (Continued)

To determine whether control exists over Beijing TJYL and its
subsidiaries, the Group has considered the following factors in
accordance with HKFRS 10 paragraph 7:

° The power over an investee to direct the relevant activities
that significantly affect the investee’s return was granted to
Shenzhoufu Software through the exclusive consulting and
services agreement, under which Shenzhoufu Software is
able to appoint directors, general manager and senior
management personnel of Beijing TJYL, and thus is able to
direct all major business decision of Beijing TJYL. Further,
Shenzhoufu Software is able to cast the majority of votes
at shareholder meetings. This right was transferred to
Shenzhoufu Software as stated in the shareholder voting
right entrustment agreement.

° Pursuant to the exclusive consulting and services
agreement, substantially all profits of Beijing TJYL were
transferred through consulting and technical supporting
services fees payable by Beiing TJYL to Shenzhoufu
Software, which expose the Group to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee, and the shareholder
voting right entrustment agreement gives Shenzhoufu
Software the rights of the original shareholders including
the rights to any dividend.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e BHRERME (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & ZE2014F12A31BILFE

(e) Control over Beijing Tianjiyilian Technology
Co., Ltd. (“Beijing TJYL”) (Continued)

o The Group has the ability to use its power over the investee
to affect the amount of its returns as it exercises its power
over Beijing TJYL on its own behalf and for its own benefit.
The Group has complete decision making authority over
Beijing TJYL and the Group’s decisions will significantly
affect the amount of its returns (i.e. the amount of the
profits of Beijing TJYL which it can obtain through the
consulting and technical supporting services fees charged
to Beijing TJYL).

As a result of the effects of the Structured Contracts, Beijing
TJYL, Beijing Shenzhoufu, Beijing Youxiping and Shenzhoufu
Network are accounted for as subsidiaries of the Company for
accounting purposes.

() Impairment of available-for-sale investments

The directors review available-for-sale investments at the end of
each reporting period to assess whether they are impaired. The
Group records impairment charges on available-for-sale equity
investments when there has objective evidence that an
impairment indicator exists. The determination of whether the
impairment indicator exists requires judgment. In making this
judgment, management of the Group takes into account factors
such as significant changes with an adverse effect that has taken
place in technological, market, economic or legal environment in
which the investees operate, and that indicates that the cost of
the investment in the equity instrument may not be recovered.

The chief operating decision-maker of the Group has been identified as
the executive directors of the Company. The executive directors
regularly review revenue and operating results derived from provision of
online transaction services, profit sharing with online game operators
and provision of online advertising services and consider such as one
single operating segment.

(e)

(f)

HIRREBENEER
D ([ RREBHE] W

M

25 R )

J AEEAEREAREER
BN AR EEBR A F R
N & 8 F &5 17 6 S db R R
BEHNEINE RS K
SEEELRRAMBEBNE
BHORERRE  MAKER
EREAZEZINEBHRE
HE (BN E i 38 m) db R e 7% B
W B 5 o) & BT X R AR 75 &
A JE B A9 db = oK A% B g A
TF) e

—%

H

HRAEBESONTE  IERRE
BouE -~ Ab BRI AT -~ b s B &
MM EEREF BN S KGR
RARBHHE R A

AHEERENREE

EENEREHNRENAHRLE
BRENFEARREZTRE -
BEEBEBRBIGFERE  ~&E
LA ERARERSHER

REEEEFERENREAE
HHE - EETHERS  AEEE

BEEZREWKRENRKREMEM R
iM% REIEAEREHEAN
EETHZENEAEHERE
BRBRATARERKAAEN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B S R M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & ZE2014F12A31BILFE

No geographical information is presented as all the Group’s operations
are located in the PRC.

Information about major clients

There is no single customer contributed to 10% or more revenue to the
Group’s revenue for the year.

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the service
income from the provision of online transaction services by facilitating
transactions between online game operators and online game users,
and providing mobile top-up service to mobile subscribers, profit
sharing with online game operators and provision of online advertising
services, net of business tax. An analysis of revenue, other income and

AEBNMARGRTELE R E
2518 B F o

FREEEFHNESR

RAFE HBEFE-XPHAEE10%
A EWA -

WATMABREBENEXRE BHXBEB
REMLERELHEAR ELBERRAFRH
MRXZRATFHAFPREFHERRE
RBFBHERBALZ SR AR
tERELRENRRERE LESRS
MRS IRA (EMBEZERB) - WA &

gains is as follows: MU A RIS TR
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARET T
I
Revenue: WA
Provision of online transaction services REHB X ZRE 63,022 59,205
Profit sharing with online game operators 7 1h 48 907 BE E R A 61 1,320
Provision of online advertising services RN EES RS 11 703
63,094 61,228
Other income and gains: HAan Wt A Rz -
Government grants IR 7 168 B 1,000 —
Interest income F B A 685 66
Others H1th 4 207

1,689 273




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e BHRERME (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & ZE2014F12A31BILFE

The Group’s profit before income tax expense is arrived at after NEE BB PSR X A s A& TS
charging: FIHEGH
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTTT
T

Depreciation of property, plant and M- BERZBITE
equipment 554 482

Amortisation of intangible assets & B B 365 214

Impairment loss on prepayments AR FOREEE 206 —

Written back of trade payables B 5 e~ FRIE E A - 204

Minimum lease payments under EFgEgnxERe

operating leases for buildings 623 698
Development costs (note (a)) 7 3% AR AN (BT 5% (a) 2,677 2,123
Employee benefit expenses EERA M

(including directors’ remuneration) (BEEEHFM)

Wages and salaries TEEHS 6,089 4,089

Pension scheme contributions RINE FT I 1,010 842

Auditor’s remuneration & =1 Al 37 BN 469 366

Note: B &

(@)  Development costs mainly comprise staff costs RMB2,319,000 for the (@) REKAETEBRFEE IRA  HZE2014
year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: RMB1,610,000), which are also F12A31H L FE A A R #2,319,0007T
included in the employee benefit expenses disclosed separately above. (20134 : AR #1,610,0007T) * /st A £
The Group did not capitalise any development costs for the year ended XERFEENEERAALIA - B E2014
31 December 2014 (2013: nil). FI2ABIBIEFE AEEVEZERFHE

BRAEFTE A (20134 « ) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE BRI (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & ZE2014F12A31BILFE

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the GEM
Listing Rules and Section 78(1) of Schedule 11 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622, which requires compliance with

RIEAIZER ETREBEES QG IEH
(6225 )Mt R11FBE78N)IE(BRKEFFH
BREMEN (E32F) FH16115) Fr i E -

Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Cap. 32, is as BEERNAREERNEFMAOT :
follows:
Salaries,
allowance Pension
and benefit scheme
Fee in kinds  contributions Total
e E2UER ERE 58
wsE BYA &= [N st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T AR T T ARET T
) A
Year ended HZE20145F
31 December 2014 12A31BILEE
Executive directors HITESE
Mr. Sun Jiangtao BIEEE - 244 30 274
Mr. Tang Bin & 5 A& = 230 30 260
Non-executive directors HHITEF
Mr. Wei Zhonghua BMAELE — = = —
Mr. Zhang Zhen RELAE = - - -
Ms. Guo Jia SpfELZ L - = = -
Independent non-executive &7 IEH 7T E F
directors
Mr. Yang Guang (note) 15 5% 56 A& (M &) 48 = - 48
Mr. Hou Dong (note) =R & A (M sE) 48 — - 48
Mr. He Qinghua (note) o] B 25 % A& (f95%) 48 - - 48
144 474 60 678
Year ended HZE2013F
31 December 2013 12831 BLEEE
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Sun Jiangtao BIEEE — 258 19 272
Mr. Tang Bin B A — 85 19 104
Non-executive directors FFHITESE
Mr. Wei Zhonghua B ELAE = — - -
Mr. Zhang Zhen SRS A — — - -
Ms. Guo Jia PlELZ L = = — —
Independent non-executive B IEHTEE
directors
Mr. Yang Guang (note) 15 7 58 A (BEaE) — 4 - 4
Mr. Hou Dong (note) R %4 (BfE) = 4 — 4
Mr. He Qinghua (note) fa] B 2 5% A (P 5E) = 4 - 4
— 350 38 388

Note: Appointed on 9 November 2013

BfisE : 2013411 AOREER (T



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

& B 5 R R B AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & ZE2014F12A31BILFE

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to
waive any remuneration during the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013:
nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2014, two (2013: one) of the five
highest paid employees were directors of the Company. Details of the
remuneration of the remaining three (2013: four) highest paid
employees of the Group are as follows:

RE E2014F 12831 tFE R #
BEEWNESIRENETAFMHNOLHE
(20134 : ##) o

REBZE2014F12A31BLEE > A& &
SHEERBEMZ(2013F : —F) BA
RAIEE - AEEHHK =% (20134F : [
H)emBEENTMFBERT

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AR T T

|
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e  EZAEREYMHER 861 608
Pension scheme contributions RIRE TR 90 82
951 690

The remuneration of all the five highest paid employees fell within the
band of nil to HK$1,000,000 for each of the reporting periods.

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, no remuneration
was paid by the Group to the directors or any of the five highest paid
employees as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None (2013: none) of the persons, who
were directors, waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during the
year.

R & 22014F &2013F 12 831 8 It F
EHE ASEHERESSNEM A S
e EEXTME ERMALXEH
Bk iMAZBHSREI BB E XA
FEBECOSFE:E)FRBESEHA
BENEXRNERNETMAHME -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE BRI (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & ZE2014F12A31BILFE

Taxes on profits assessable in the PRC have been calculated at the
applicable tax rates, based on existing legislation, interpretations and
practices in respect thereof.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the PRC
enterprise income tax rate of all the PRC subsidiaries, except for
Shenzhoufu Software (see note (a) below) and Beijing Shenzhoufu (see
note (b) below), was 25% on their taxable profits for the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013.

The Group is not subject to any taxation under the jurisdiction of the
Cayman Islands during the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: nil).
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group
did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the
year (2013: nil).

The amount of income tax expense charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income represents:

Group rE

B AR B A B IR D AR IR AE BE IR AR
B - 2EREOASEERERBREH -

RIER AR AR RER - B E2014F
N2013F 12 A1 B ILFE - FrA HBEK
B AR (B E 8 N 80 4 (B R 32Kt s
(@) R b m s N A (R SXHT 5 (b)) &9 R
B 1b ¥ A5 A R 19 1R KRR TR A &
25% 5T & °

AEBREE2014F12A31HIEFE
BEBMA SRS Al AR E [ IE
(2013F : ) - MR AEERAFEEIL
EIEBBEEMMERN G - W5 &
ELBEFE BB (20134 « ) o

EREaE2HEBBERAMNBOMEHRAX

TR

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTT

Current tax — PRC enterprise income tax

BIEATE IR — B 1 X AT 1S 7R

— tax for the year — FRNFIE 4,526 3,778
— withholding tax — TR 300 6,400
4,826 10,178

Deferred tax (note 28) PR FE R I (I 3£28) 1,963 (3,999
Income tax expense FriEs R X 6,789 6,179




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e BHRERME (E)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the Group’s
profit before income tax expense per the consolidated statement of

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &, Z=2014F12A8

31HIFE

AEERAFENFAEHAXAEGE S
T M 58 2% 1 RO B BT 1S A5 7 S BT e A 3 B

comprehensive income as follows: /(N
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBT T
I
Profit before income tax expense & BT 15 %5 B 2 BTt A 27,400 21,065
Tax on profit before income tax expense, B P58 % B S Ala Al o B |
calculated at 25% (2013: 25%) 1% 25% =T & (2013 4F : 25%) 6,850 5,266
Effect of different tax rates in HEprl iz TRAMR AT E
other jurisdictions 426 2,342
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses T MBRATORE T E 115 189
Tax losses not recognised R i R T JEE ?E 315 27
Income tax on concession rates HEEMEAENMAEH
(note () & (b)) (Bt 5 (a) &2 () (3,180) (4,046)
Withholding tax arising on undistributed Bt B8 2 B R 9 R s ) 2E AR Y
profits in a subsidiary (note (c)) TEHF (M7 (c) 2,263 2,401
Income tax expense Frs i X 6,789 6,179

Notes:

(@)

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, Shenzhoufu
Software qualified as “Software Enterprise” and is entitled to exemption
from the PRC enterprise income tax for two years commencing from its
first profit-making year of operation, followed by a 50% reduction in the
applicable tax rate for the next three years. Shenzhoufu Software’s
preferential tax rate for the year ended 31 December 2013 was 12.5% (being
50% of the standard tax rate of 25%) respectively.

Shenzhoufu Software successfully obtained the “National High
Technology Enterprise” status during the year, and this qualification is
valid for 3 years starting from 2014 and the applicable PRC enterprise
income tax rate was 15% for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, Beijing
Shenzhoufu qualified as “Software Enterprise” and is entitled to exemption
from the PRC enterprise income tax for two years commencing from its
first profit-making year of operation, following by a 50% reduction in the
applicable tax rate for the next three years. Beijing Shenzhoufu
commenced its first profit-making year of operation in 2012 and it is
exempted from the PRC enterprise income tax for the year ended 31
December 2013. Beijing Shenzhoufu’s preferential tax rate for the year
ended 31 December 2014 was 12.5% (being 50% of the standard tax
rate of 25%).

GEE

(@) BEFPBEABEERER  SMNEFRERFE
BB BHLE] BEEEAEMNEXSF
ERFAMEAEREHEATREADEMS
Bt W H 1R = F 0] A B R ¥ - 4
IN A B R B E2013412 A31 A IEF &

BB BB E RB12.5% (BN AZE £ B K 25% 7
¥) -

NS EERAFRAKIREIERS
KT ISR ERAXHABH2014F 8
AH=F HZE2014F12831ALEE -
HEANTRECEMEHRHREAR15% °

) WBEFEAEEEER LRSENEFE
BRABIRGCE] BEHEARMNEESF
ERAMEAEREHBMNTRECERS
B WRHEB=Fr AR MY I
FAM TR 2012 Rt H B MEF & ¥ T
fE WA E2013F12A31B8 I EFEER
REHAMPECEMBR - L RBMNERE
Z2014F12A31BIEFENEBEHR XA
12.5% (BN1R ZE B K 25% 7 F ) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

e B S R M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & ZE2014F12A31BILFE

Notes: (Continued)

(c) Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from
the foreign investment enterprises established in the PRC. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between the
PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. Accordingly, Shenzhoufu
Software, being a wholly foreign-owned enterprise established in the
PRC, is liable to a 10% withholding tax on its undistributed profit as
determined in accordance with the PRC accounting rules and regulations.

Loss attributable to shareholders of the Company includes a loss of
RMB1,799,000 (2013: loss of RMB8,728,000) which has been dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company.

BeE : ()

© RETEARZERASR RPBEMKZD
SVE B ERINEIRE E B IR AR B BB
10% TR i B E2 SN B 1% & 3 P 42 7
ERERTARBIERA - RIEE AR
AR A - Bk NS ESE (R —BR
PEKZHNIEBEELR) BRREHE
B At AR Bl K A6 51 BT E B R 9 K s A AT
10% FBHIME °

ARARRELHEBEBERE—HEEBA
R #1,799,000 7T (20134 : 518 A R &
8,728,0007T) ' B R AR A wE
ERRIE »

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT R ARETTT

Special dividend paid

SR REST )

— 50,400

The Company declared dividend for the financial periods prior to 31
December 2012 to the then shareholder of the Company of
approximately RMB39,900,000 in July 2013 and approximately
RMB10,500,000 in September 2013. The special dividend was fully
settled in cash on or before 4 December 2013. The rates for dividend
and the number of shares ranking for dividends are not presented as
such information is not considered meaningful for the purpose of this

report.

RAGAARARAEFHNRREST RE S
201212 A31 BRI A B B 2 AR B I
20134 7 A E Ik ¥ A R # 39,900,000 7T K&
M2018%F9 A 5 Ik 4 A R # 10,500,000
7T ° B Bl A% B 2013412 A4 H 8k 2 Al
NBEAFRNBHEN - ARE ARSI
EEE BAUBITESRBRIFNNEREE
R ZRMEE o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

& B 5 R R B AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & ZE2014F12A31BILFE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the profit
for the year attributable to owners of the Company and the weighted
average of 480,000,000 ordinary shares (2013: 369,205,479) of the
Company, taking into account the shares issued and outstanding
during the year and on the assumption that the Reorganisation (note 1)
and capitalisation issue (note 15) have been effective on 1 January
2013.

No diluted earnings per share is presented as there were no potential
ordinary shares in issue during the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013:
nil).

ERERBINDERRNARESE AEWN
& [Z % ) K hn#E F 5 £2480,000,000 A%
i % (2013 4F : 369,205,4790% ) 5t & - I
KEBEFANEEHITERBERMRBRE
HH 1) RE AR ET (M E15) B &
R2013F1 A1 HEK »

H E2014F12831BH L FEWLEEE
TERET REARZNEREERFR
(20134 : ##) o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE BRI (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & ZE2014F12A31BILFE

Group ARE
Office Computer Motor
equipment equipment vehicles Total
WOAERE BRE RE #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AR T T ARBT T
31 December 2014 M2014512H31H
Cost: DN
At 1 January 2014 1K20144%F1 A1 H 260 1,835 917 3,012
Additions (note) NE (i aE) - 551 - 551
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12 A 31 H 260 2,386 917 3,563
Accumulated depreciation: i
At 1 January 2014 R2014F1H1H 210 1,032 228 1,470
Charge for the year FRIFTE 24 321 209 554
At 31 December 2014 M2014412 A31H 234 1,353 437 2,024
Net book value: BREDFE :
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12 A31 H 26 1,033 480 1,539
31 December 2013 2013412 H31 H
Cost: PR AR
At 1 January 2013 R2013%1 A1H 260 1,615 693 2,568
Additions NE — 220 224 444
At 31 December 2013 M2013F 12 A31H 260 1,835 917 3,012
Accumulated depreciation: 2T E -
At 1 January 2013 R2013%F1 A1H 166 729 93 988
Charge for the year FRNTE 44 303 135 482
At 31 December 2013 R20134F 12 A31 H 210 1,032 228 1,470
Net book value: BRTEFE -
At 31 December 2013 R2013%F 12 A31H 50 803 689 1,642




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

R B R AR MY EE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &, E201412A31 B I FE

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. B & E
Group RE
Computer
software
B
RMB’000
ARBT T
S
31 December 2014 MA2014%F12H31 H
Cost: DN
At 1 January 2014 R2014E1 818 2,104
Additions (note) ANE (FI5E) 1,836
At 31 December 2014 R2014F12 H31 H 3,940
Accumulated depreciation: S E
At 1 January 2014 R2014%1 H1H 1,771
Charge for the year FRITE 365
At 31 December 2014 M2014F12A31H 2,136
Net book value: BREF(E :
At 31 December 2014 R2014%12A31H 1,804
31 December 2013 201312831 H
Cost: A
At 1 January 2013 M2013F1A1H 2,094
Additions INE 10
At 31 December 2013 MR2013F12 A31 H 2,104
Accumulated amortisation: RETHEH
At 1 January 2013 R2013%F1HA1H 1,657
Charge for the year A BR 214
At 31 December 2013 R2013F 12 A31H 1,771
Net book value: BREF(E :
At 31 December 2013 R2013F 12 A31H 888

Note: The additions of intangible assets for the year ended 31 December 2014
included intangible assets of RMB1,470,000 contributed from non-

controlling interests of Shenzhoufu Network.

Misk : B Z2014F 12 A31 B L FE # Mz EF
B E SRR A 1N B4 I ik i = B BR
2\ A EARM1,470,0007T ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE BRI (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & ZE2014F12A31BILFE

Company
AT
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARBTTT
T

LA - AR = =

Unlisted shares, at cost

R2014F 12 B31 B AR Al B R A Z &

The particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries as at 31 December 2014

are as follow: (ERUNNE
Issued and fully Attributable equity
Place and date paid share capital/ interests held by Place of operation and
Name of incorporation registered capital the Company principal activities
o i AR L 3t B ERTRHAZRE RNl
=L R B =T E A FE 1k IR 7 4 2 REBBERTEXY
Direct Indirect
HE HE:3
Shen Zhou Xing Limited Hong Kong, Issued and fully paid 100% — Investment holding in
(“Shen Zhou Xing”) 19 May 2008 HK$1 for 1 ordinary Hong Kong
share
BMITER A A &k BT RERRAR B REER
(E: kS D) 200845 A 19H 18T IR @K
Shenzhoufu Software' PRC, Registered capital of = 100%  Provision of consulting
3 July 2008 RMB80,906,740 and technical supporting
services to group companies
in the PRC
A 0 A B4 R HMERARE NG IR SEIYNY B
200847 A3H 80,906,740 7T, A 5 e Bl S 8% PR A%
Beijing TJYL? PRC, Registered capital of — 100%  Provision of online transaction
| July 2005 RMB10,000,000 services in the PRC
Jb R B PR AMERARE R BREE ER 5 R
2005 7A1H 10,000,0007T
Beijing Shenzhoufu? PRC, Registered capital of = 100%  Provision of online transaction
25 May 2011 RMB10,000,000 services in the PRC
3k = 4 0 42 FE - HMERARE R ERER R 5 R
20115 H25H 10,000,000 7T
Beijing Youxiping® PRC, Registered capital of — 100%  Profit sharing with online game
2 August 2012 RMB10,000,000 operators and provision of
online advertising services
in the PRC
b 7 i R PR AMERARE DG M8 - 05 ELE 2 B s R R
201248 A2 H 10,000,000 7T RS EES RS
Shenzhoufu Network® * PRC, Registered capital of = 51%  Provision of internet information
AT A A% > 18 July 2014 RMB3,000,000 service business in the PRC
FE HMERARK R R EAEE S
201447 A18H 3,000,0007T RIS X



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

& B 5 R R B AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & ZE2014F12A31BILFE

Notes:

1. Shenzhoufu Software, a 100% directly owned subsidiary of Shen Zhou
Xing, is registered as a wholly foreign-owned enterprise under the laws of
the PRC.

2. Interests existed by virtue of certain contractual arrangements as
described in note 5(e).

3. Beijing Youxiping, a 100% directly owned subsidiary of Beijing
Shenzhoufu, is registered as a limited company under the laws of the
PRC.

4. Shenzhoufu Network, a 51% directly owned subsidiary of Beijing TJYL, is
registered as a limited company under the laws of the PRC.

—

BN EREREMNTHNEEREZENBR
A BEPRERIMRIIEEELE -

2. FEM ST E TE N RHEER s o

3. EREBEERRIER NG ERZENER
B BEPRERIAMAEREEAR -

4. AN A A8 4% 73 b 3R 4 5 B 519 Y B 12 B
BAR REFEDAZEMABEREMLA
o

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBT T

Unlisted equity securities outside BB AN FE LT IRAF
Hong Kong, at cost E-d DN

1,300 =

The amount represents investment in 2 private companies in the PRC,
which are engaged in Bitcoin trading and information and social
communication in the PRC. The unlisted available-for-sale equity
securities are measured at cost less impairment at each reporting date
because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant.
Accordingly, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that fair
value cannot be reliably measured. The directors of the Company have
no intention to dispose of the available-for-sale financial assets at the
end of reporting period.

ZEBRERTEREALEAR2KE
ERARETERELFERIZIUARE
BRMEBRM -FLWAHLERLE
FRERE M RILKARBETE T3
HRAFESEMFTHEREEKN 5
e ARAEZTRBR/ERFETERE
AE-NBEHRR A2AEFER L
EAHLEEREE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE BRI (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & ZE2014F12A31BILFE

Group rEHE 2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETTT
T N

Trade receivables from: B TIATHE S ERKRIA :

— Third parties —%=7 3,391 5,100
The Group normally does not grant credit period to its customers. For a AEE—RBRBEATERE TFTEFEE
minor portion of customers who are granted credit period, the credit H-p=zEEEHNLHEERPME &
period is generally 90 days. The Group seeks to apply strict control BB — M B90K o 7N & B B 1 B A% 1=
over its outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk. All the trade MR U B EWRIBARERERFEER
receivables are non-interest bearing. RoFMMAEBZEWRIEHRRE °
The aging analysis of trade receivables (net of impairment losses) are as B 5 W HIE (IR R EEE) B RER D
follows: AT

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB T ARETT

—— |
0 to 3 months 0ZE31# A 3,390 5,099
3 to 6 months 3ZE61E A - 1
6 months to 1 year 6MEAE1E - -
1 to 2 years 1E24F 1 —

3,391 5,100




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

& B 5 R R B AL ()

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & ZE2014F12A31BILFE

The analysis of the Group’s trade receivables that were past due but

REREHR - NEE @B & R RE
=0

not impaired as at the end of each of the reporting periods is as follows: 20 FEWERIBHI DM a0 -
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T

— ]

Neither past due nor impaired (note (a)) R A J2 ARk (B (T 3% (@) 3,390 5,100
Within 12 months past due (note (b)) 0 8 D A 1248 A (3£ (b)) - =
More than 12 months past due (note (b)) e BB A 1218 A (M 5% (b)) 1 —
3,391 5,100

Notes:

(@) The balances that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide
range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

(b) Receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a number of
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, the directors are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.

The Group recognised impairment loss on individual assessment based
on the accounting policy stated in note 4(g)(ii).

@  AREHIRARREMN SRR EER T
BMAREEF AR -

b EBERBERKHENEETEEELAEER
RERFBERENABBULTSHRH -
REBERR EFRABNEEERL
BEREHRERDER BT ZEHKE -
HBARZEERELRERE - A& H
I 4 5 5% 5 45 eR 4 A A () 4R R S EL i A
BIEEEIE -

A 55 B4R 45 P 5 4(0)(i) P 51 B9 & 5T IR B
{8 5l &F £ FE 2R (B S 48 -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RE BRI (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 & ZE2014F12A31BILFE

Group REH 2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
(]
Prepayments (note (a)) Fa AR (K 5E () 42,353 21,090
Other receivables (note (b)) H it W 3k I (M9 5% (b)) 2,463 2,161
Deposits ®& 9 1
44,825 23,252
Notes: Bt 3
(@)  The Group’s prepayments were prepayments to online game operators in (@ AEBENEMRAMM EERELNE
amount of RMB42,007,000 as at 31 December 2014 (2013: 8 3R H R2014F12A31B 8 & &
RMB21,090,000). A A R #42,007,0007t (20134 : A B #&
21,090,0007T) °
(b) Included in the Group’s other receivables were required guarantee funds (o) INER B ) H fth fE IR IR B AR MR M A8 E e

deposited to online game operators in amount of RMB1,630,000 as at 31
December 2014 (2013: RMB1,680,000). Under cooperation agreements
with the online game operators, the Group is required to make guarantee
funds of a pre-agreed amount to the online game operators upon entering
into the relevant cooperation agreements.

BEZ MR NMRFES  K2014F12 A31
AH & %A ARK1,630,0007T (20134 :
A R %1,680,0007) ° 18 45 £ 48 35 5 8
BRI NEERE AEBERTLE
BEEHERAAE L EREE R L —2
TBEBESENRES ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e BHRERME (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2014 &, E201412A31 B I FE

INVENTORIES 21. 7 &
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB T ARBTT
T

Pre-paid mobile top-up credits ENFHREERESE 35,784 16,973
Online game products A EERER 327 1,193
36,111 18,166
AMOUNT DUE FROM RELATED 22. JE I B8 2 = F it 2

COMPANIES AND SUBSIDIARIES B K IH
Group AEHE 2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETT
T

Beijing Qiandaiwang Intelligence :lt RENPESERITAREE
Technology Co., Ltd. (“Beijing QDW”) NR([HEmEEfiE]) 1,411 6,087
Beijing Qiandaibao Payment I RBERELZ A RMERA A
Technology Ltd. (“Beijing QDB”) (ERERE]) 2,562 =
3,973 6,087
The related companies are either controlled by the directors or BEANFIYSEEEY ST ESTE
significant influenced by the directors, and the balances are non-trade Z MmMZELEHAEFEESIHEE - & ?EE
in nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. H BAEREREREES -
Maximum amounts due from the related parties are as follows: FEWBEEATH RS RBWNT :
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
|
Beijing QDW b REERE 6,087 6,087
Beiing QDB tRERE 2,562 —
The balances due from subsidiaries are non-trade in nature, unsecured, FEWHIB AT RIBERAIEZ S HE

interest-free and repayable on demand. I R EREERKEE -
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23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23.

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

BEAFEFABRENS
B E

2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T ARETT

Investment in Bitcoin, at fair value BN FERE LI

600 =

The fair value of the Group’s investment in Bitcoin is based on quoted
market price.

AEELBERENRFEDERTS

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24 RERBREEEY
Group K& 2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARET T
Cash and bank balances IH & MIRTT 4 #f 64,820 68,826

The cash and cash equivalents of RMB64,685,000 was denominated
in RMB at 31 December 2014 (2013: RMB68,692,000). RMB is not a
freely convertible currency and the remittance of funds out of the PRC
is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC Government.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

R2014F12A31H  REeRBELEEY
B AR #64,685,0007T (20134F : AR
68,692,0007T) ' MAREFE - AR
ATEHRELBREE MEESEDLF
Bl 78 5 21| §1 B BK AT B 0 A9 B PR 1] A9 AR
PR o

RITASDHRES BRITHERFENZ
BB B - RITAEBRTIF RN T B
VEEHDCHEBRIFRITOHER -
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25. TRADE PAYABLES 25. B 5 B FIE
2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARET T
Trade payables to B TIHALTHE S EMFIE :

26.

— Third parties —H=%

41,989 34,399

Trade payables are non-interest bearing. The Group is normally granted
credit terms ranging from 1-30 days.

The aging analysis of trade payables are as follows:

ESRNARBARE - A5E —RER
HEEHN F1E30K -

BEZRMNRENREDFTOT
2014 2013

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETTT

0 to 3 months 0Z3@A 39,539 32,625
3 to 6 months 3Z=6M@A 633 530
6 months to 1 year 618 A =14 826 423
Over 1 year 1F A E 991 821

41,989 34,399

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 26.

Hitt BN RIEREEH

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETT

Receipts in advance 8 U BR 3K
Other payables and accruals Hib BN HRIBRERTE A
Other tax payables H b S TR IR

7,187 3,457
2,150 945
409 482

9,746 4,884
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 & ZE2014F12A31BILFE

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARKETTT

Company P NN
Amounts due to subsidiaries RN S

12,298 9,297

The amounts due to subsidiaries are non-trade in nature, unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

Details of the deferred tax liabilities recognised and movements during
the current and prior year:

Deferred tax liabilities — Group

EAMBARRARFESEE  EHX
A RERENRBEREEE-

NEFERBEFECRRELHAR
EREDHE

ELEBBRRE —F&H

Undistributed
earnings of
PRC subsidiary
HR B A A
R K& F
RMB’000
ARBTT

At 1 January 2013 7R20134%1 81 H
Credited to profit or loss AR

6,402
(3,999)

At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 R2013412 A31 H

X 2014%F1 A1H 2,403

Charged to profit or loss SRS

1,963

At 31 December 2014 R2014%F12 A 31 H

4,366

At 31 December 2014, the Group had unused tax losses of
RMB1,367,000 (2013: RMB107,000) which would expire in five years’
time. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
unused tax losses as the directors considered that the impact is
minimal.

201412 A31H » AEBERAS AR
% BB A A R #1,367,0007T (20134 ¢
AR¥A107,000T) ' R A F AN EH -
HREZERAZEDTK MU ERKE
AHBERERECRIEEE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 & ZE2014F12A31BILFE

Deferred tax liabilities — Group (Continued)

Expiry year of unrecognised tax losses:

EEHBEEE — X558 @)
REERFIS B A B W -

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
T
2018 20184F 107 107
2019 20194 1,260 —
Authorised and issued share capital EERBBITRA
2014 2013
Number RMB’000 Number RMB’000
Eg=] ARBET T B ARETTT
Authorised EE
Ordinary shares of & P%0.001 3£ TTHY
US$0.001 each (note (a)) ®@mA (@)  1,000,000,000 6,148 1,000,000,000 6,148
Issued and fully paid ERTRHBE
Ordinary shares of f%0.001 % 7T &9
US$0.001 each T A%
At beginning of the year REH 480,000,000 2,941 1 —
Issue of shares on the EHEmMETZ
Reorganisation (note (b)) A& 1 (B 7 (o)) - - i,1€8.988 7
Issue of new shares by BEREETZ
way of placing (note (c)) F & (M 3£ () - = 120,000,000 735
Issue of shares on BEARBEITZRG
capitalisation (note (d)) (B 7E () = — 358,800,000 2,199
At end of the year RER 480,000,000 2,941 480,000,000 2,941




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 & ZE2014F12A31BILFE

Authorised and issued share capital (continued)

Notes:

(@) On 11 November 2013, the authorised share capital of the Company was
increased from US$50,000 to US$1,000,000. As a result, the Company
had an authorised share capital of US$1,000,000 divided into
1,000,000,000 Shares.

(b) On 11 November 2013, the Company capitalised an amount of
US$1,199.999 from the distributable profits of the Company and to apply
such amount in paying up in full at par 1,199,999 shares and allotted and
issued the aforesaid 1,199,999 shares to China Payment Limited, the
then shareholder of the Company.

(c) On 4 December 2013, 120,000,000 shares of US$0.001 each of the
Company, were issued at HK$0.6 per share by way of placing and the
Company’s shares were listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.

(d) On 4 December 2013, the Company allotted and issued fully paid up
share capital of US$358,800, divided into 358,800,000 shares with a
nominal value of US$0.001 to the then existing shareholders by
capitalising the amount of RMB2,199,000 from the amount standing to
the credit of the share premium account.

Capital management policy

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in
light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the year.

Management regards total equity attributable to owners of the
Company as capital. The amount of capital as at 31 December 2014
amounted to approximately RMB100,652,000 (2013: RMB79,895,000)
which management considers as optimal having considered the
projected capital expenditures and the strategic opportunities.

EERERBITRA @

B RE

(@) R2013F 11 A11H » A2 & B X F B’ A
£ 50,0003 JT # Z= 1,000,0003 JT © A It
A R A A TE IR A A1,000,000E T 0 5 B
1,000,000,000 f% B& 17

(0) R2013F11 A118 * XA R AR AR A
79 Al 4 5 Ik i 1 1,199.999k T K i % £ 58
PR % T B 1 2 1,199,999 B% % 15 A K2 [A)
China Payment Limited (782 7] & B A9 i% )
it % ]2 317 £l 1,199,999 % B% 15 ©

© R2013FE 12548 AR A NEEH NI
& }20.67% 7T & {8 1% % 7 120,000,000 A& 4
AR BREECIETHERG AR A
A& 19 HA B A FT A S AR £ T o

©) R2013F12 A48 * N2 R K5 % &R
ZERSEABAR2,199,0007T &7 &
N HEUAMERZEARREZERETE
B % A358,8003 T+ #f % /358,800,000
% & B B 180.001 = 7T Z % 17 ©

EXEEREK

AEMERAFNEIEERARES
RS R A AL
KRR o

AEBEREEARBRARLEM
MEPELRHE - BEFIIABELAR
B ARBETRERBRROREIKAM
AR ERRELETHR RAFE
E-YEEEREEANE R BERAIE
FYEHE R -

EEERARREBEARLBRERZASE
Ko R2014F 12831 EXSBLO A
A R #100,652,0007T (20134 : A R #&
79,895,000 T) ' EEE L E ETEME AR
Y REBEEE REBREKFE-
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Details of the movements on the Group’s reserves are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Movements on the

Company’s reserves are set out below:

AEENHRESFEH

. dE N7 4
RizE R E

R ARANFHEHEEBHIMOT :

Share Accumulated
Company NN Premium losses Total
IR 17 % 8 ZitEE FER -]
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARBT T
(note (a)) (note (d))
(M3 (@) (Fft 5% (d))
]
At 1 January 2013 R201341818 - (4,099) (4,009)
Profit and total comprehensive F AR N2 R A B
income for the year - 42,332 42,332
Issue of shares on the HEREMBEITZRMD
Reorganisation (note 29(b)) (M 3£ 29(0)) — (7) ()
Issue of new shares by way BB S BT 2R H
of placing (note 29(c)) (P 5E29(c)) 50,098 - 50,098
Dividends declared and paid BEEREEIRMSKE
(note 13) (fF7E13) = (50,400) (50,400)
Issue of shares on capitalisation BERBETZRG
(note 29(d)) (B 3E£29(d)) (2,199) - (2,199)
At 31 December 2013 and #K2013%F 12 A31H
1 January 2014 K 20141 A1H 47,899 (12,174) 35,725
Loss and total comprehensive FABBNMEEBRABEE
income for the year — (1,799) (1,799)
At 31 December 2014 R2014%F 12 A31H 47,899 (13,973) 33,926
(a) Share premium () B@=RE

Amount subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value,
less of share issuing costs.

B EEERBRASEBHEE
ZARIA - WA R B AD AT o

(b) EXMHE

RN EAESHRSHAANEE
NERRESHEARBEALR
BEFEELNBRBERELNT

(b) Capital reserve

The reserve is arising from the capital contribution from equity
holders resulted from the Reorganisation and also from the
deemed contribution from equity holders in connection with the
tax losses incurred by the related parties in prior years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 & ZE2014F12A31BILFE

(b) Capital reserve (Continued) (b) EAfEE @

The deemed capital contribution from equity holders represents
the savings of income tax payable to tax authority for the Group’s
business operated by the related parties that should otherwise
be incurred should the related parties be not in a tax loss
position, and the Group records this tax savings as capital
contribution from the equity holders and the equivalent amount
as income tax expense for the period.

(c) Statutory reserve

As stipulated by the relevant regulations in the PRC, the
Company’s subsidiaries established and operating in the PRC
are required to appropriate 10% of their profit after tax (after
offsetting prior year losses), as determined in accordance with
the PRC accounting rules and regulations, to the statutory
reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered
capital. The transfer to this reserve shall be made before
distribution of dividend to equity owners. The statutory reserve
fund can be used to make up prior years’ losses, if any.

(d) Retained earnings/accumulated losses

The amount represents cumulative net gains and losses
recognised in profit or loss.

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, the Group had the following
material related party transactions:

(@) Related party transactions

Rental charges paid to directors NTESENHEEH

BIEEEFAATIEERBEEA
TR AN B RS E A A
MO SHES  WMEEALLE
HBEE MeRRAEHES
A& B2 5 B IBEE AR
RESTKAEANIBERFREEA
FRAAMENFAX

5 TE i 8
RBHEFBERRE  A2AR
MEIR S R E BB AR AR
BhBEEAARERBERRR
EAN (B EFERBE)10%H
BEERE BEERBERELIN
B NB0% 43 LE o ¥ It 7 5 B0 88 1R
RAERFEADIKRESAEL -
AEREES U REREEESF
EEBERA) -

REBR R EIE

ZERERBERERNRFTFR
=N EiE o

A& EMBTAHEEI  AEE
#T

TUATEREEALRS

(@ BEALIXRS

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETT

577 698

The transactions are charged at a pre-determined rate mutually
agreed by the parties.

R NWABNTHEHENTRE
ETBERKE-
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(b) Key management personnel compensation

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors is as follows:

b) TEEEAESFHMH

AEENET2EBASEHH (B4
EXNTFARREENESRIMAT :

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBETT

Short-term employee benefits EEEE R

1,672 1,029

The remuneration of the Group’s key management personnel fell
within the band of nil to HK$1,000,000 for the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2018.

(C) During the year ended 31 December 2014, Beijing QDB provided
the usage of electronic payment platform to the Group without
any charges. The gross transaction amounts via the internet
payment platform for the year ended 31 December 2014 were
RMB86,268,000 (2013: RMB965,498,000).

The Group leases certain properties under operating leases. The leases
for properties usually run for an initial period of three months to one
year.

At the end of each of the reporting period, the total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are payables
as follows:

()

R £2014F K20134F 12 A31H
HEE AEEETBEEAEBNT
B 18 2 N - = 7 T =1,000,00078
7750

HE2014F12A31B It FE - 4t
RESBERAEEREFAE

TN FEE B E2014F12A31H
IHFE SBEBBNRTEEST
R PR B B AR 86,268,000 7T
(20134 : A R #965,498,0007T) °

AEERBEEHAOBEEETYWE %
SUEROBEONSRBE=ZEAZE -

o

R s MK AR BRSO
15 7R 40 B 1 ) R SR B I T O KR B
mF -

2014 2013
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT

Within one year —FR

569 569
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The carrying amounts and fair value of each of the categories of NEREPRRNSELR T ENEKR@EE

=
financial instruments as at the end of each of the reporting periods are EAFEIT :
as follows:
Group KE
2014 2013
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
BRTE B AEE REE ATE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE AR®BTR ARBTT AR%®T
[ |
Financial assets SREE
Available-for-sale financial assets: AEHESHEE
— Unlisted equity securities — ELETRAZFS 1,300 N/A R@f* — —
Fair value through profit or BN FEGFARZ
loss — held for trading: —HEEE :
— Bitcoin at quoted market — B mSRE 600 600 - =
Loans and receivables: ER R EWFRIE
— Trade receivables — B 5 EWRIE 3,391 3,391 5,100 5,100
— Financial assets included —stAERMTR e R
in prepayments, deposits Hith fE U RIE R
and other receivables TRMEE 44,664 44,664 23,252 23,252
— Amount due from — W EE R RIRIE
related companies 3,973 3,973 6,087 6,087
— Cash and cash equivalents —HeRBEEED 64,820 64,820 68,826 68,826
118,748 117,448 103,265 103,265
Financial liabilities cRAaE
Financial liabilities measured HEEA AT 2 1Y
at amortised cost: ZHERE:
— Trade payables — B2 ENFIA 41,989 41,989 34,399 34,399
— Financial liabilities included — T AE b FE T FRIE R
in other payables and ErrEANERERE
accruals 9,337 9,337 4,402 4,402
51,326 51,326 38,801 38,801

The available-for-sale financial assets are measured at cost less impairment,

and no fair value can be determine due to the range of estimation is

significant (note 18).

AHEESREERKARBEE AR

AFFBERA - i EEE R FEE8) -
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Company YNNI
2014 2013
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
BRE B AFE BRTH B AF¥E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR®BTR ARBTT AR%®T
R — | | ]
Financial assets EWMEE
Loans and receivables: B K EYIE
— Amount due from subsidiaries ~ — J& U b B A 7 3018 49,923 49,923 48,317 48,317
— Cash and cash equivalents —HeRESZEEY 29 29 29 29
49,952 49,952 48,346 48,346
Financial liabilities SHBeE
Financial liabilities measured 1Z P AR A E
at amortised cost: TEEE
— Amounts due to subsidiaries — FEBI B A B FIE 12,298 12,298 9,297 9,297
— Financial liabilities included — & AE A FUE R
in other payables and accrual EETERA T #
BE 948 948 383 383
13,246 13,246 9,680 9,680

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments carried
at fair value by level of fair value hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

TREHREBAFEBRRAFENE
e @I AN

FI1ER: EEBRMESHEAREERA
BEEG Z HECRERAE)

F2BA: ANFIMBEANZEEN
BEZAEBEERARE &
w2 & (AMER) sk (A
BREREH) K

FEIER: HERERYFERAER
MEHBBEZEELRABERA
gER(TAERBARE) -
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F1BER
RMB’000

ARBTR

Group

Financial assets at fair value RAFEFABEN
through profit or loss SREE
— Bitcoin at quoted market — bR TS B

rEE
2014
Level 2 Level 3 Total
F2BAR EIB/A -

RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®TR AR®TR

- - 600

The Group has various financial assets and liabilities such as cash and
cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables
and balances with related companies and directors.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are foreign
currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they
are summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions are principally
denominated in RMB, which is the functional currency of the Company.
Therefore, the risk on foreign currency risk is minimal.

AEBEZRzMEENRAE MRS
ER2EBY BHREMERFERE-
B REMBENFIEA UKEFERF
REENBREF

AEENESRTAMEENETERRA
SNERR - EERBETSHE SRR -
EFEeDEHNTREEESHRARKNK
By o

S 85 L B

AEBNEBEE BERXZEEN
ARBHE ARBAARRANINEE
%o EitE - SMNEE R AR o
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Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade receivables,
other receivables, amounts due from related companies and cash and
cash equivalents. There was no history of default for amounts due from
related companies and other receivables, and the bank deposits are
placed in the banks with high credit-ratings.

In respect to trade receivables, the Group trades only with recognised
and creditworthy customers and the receivable balances are monitored
on an ongoing basis and on an individual basis. However, the Group
had a certain degree of concentration of credit risk on trade receivables.
The trade receivables from the five largest debtors as at 31 December
2014 represented 95% (2013: 100%) of total receivables, respectively,
while the largest debtor represented 61% (2013: 58%). Given the credit
worthiness and reputation of the major debtors, the directors believe
the risk arising from concentration is manageable and not significant.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through the use of cash flows from operations.
The Group regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure that it
has adequate financial resources in meeting its financial obligations.
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of
each of the reporting periods, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, was less than one year.

Fair value

The carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial liabilities
carried at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values due to the relative short term maturity of
these financial instruments.

FERR

AEENEERRIEZEREEEFEK
FOIE - H th U RIE - B IR E A B K
BRREFREEEY - BREBERF
TR N E A fE WGR IR Y i R AR ER 0 B
RITFERFRESEEFRORT -

REZRERBFEMNS  AEEEHANS
BEEERTNEFRFRS BRERKEHRT
REBERERNBERETER AWM &
SEE " TRELGEE S EKRRIA
EERKREF BN R2014F12 A 31
H REFTABEBANE S EWRKIE
7 Bl 4f FE UK 5K I8 48 KH 1995% (2013 4F :
100%) : M & A & # A Bl 1561% (2013
F58%) EREITEBEBHANGEERE
Z. . EEZREEFELENRAR AR
A TREKX o

RBETER

AEENEEREBNAEEELRS
MEBERBEENEcEHEZEZHAR
Y@ -AEEERARSEZIZESM
o HERAE RSB 5 B R IR T H R
FE-RESAIMNRUBAMNT AKER
EHREHURNERBEINHA PR —
F o

AT

TREERERABNREERERSH
BREANREHKATER BBARZE
ERMTAMIBARE  REAKEER
HAFEEE -
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On 20 January 2015, the Group entered into an agreement with
Leyu Limited (“Leyu”), pursuant to which Leyu conditionally
agreed to issue and the Group conditionally agreed to acquire
shares of Leyu at a consideration of RMB3,000,000. Upon
completion of the transaction, the Group would have around
30% of issued share capital of Leyu. Leyu is an investment
holding company and its subsidiary is principally engaged in
peer-to-peer lending in the PRC. The transaction was completed
in January 2015.

On 23 January 2015, the Group entered into an agreement with
Beijing Wanlefu Technology Limited (“Beijing WLF”), pursuant to
which the Group agreed to invest in Beijing WLF at a
consideration of RMB1,020,000. Upon completion of the
transaction, the Group would have around 51% of issued share
capital of Beijing WLF. Beijing WLF is principally engaged in
provision of consumer credit business in the PRC. The
transaction was completed in January 2015.

As at the date of the financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue, the directors of the Company were still
evaluating the financial impact of this transaction to the Group,
and it is not practicable to disclose further details about the
transaction at the completion date.

On 10 February 2015, the Group entered into an agreement with
Beijing Joinber Technology Limited (“Beijing Joinber”), pursuant
to which the Group agreed to invest in Beijing Joinber at a
consideration of RMB1,000,000. Upon completion of the
transaction, the Group would have around 7% of issued share
capital of Beijing Joinber. Beijing Joinber is principally engaged in
provision of Bitcoins related services in the PRC. Up to the date
of approval of the financial statements, the transaction has not
yet completed.

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
Board of Directors on 13 March 2015.
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